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2015 Financial Statements 

1. Recommendations 

It is recommended that: 

1. The Board approve the draft 2015 Financial Statements and explanatory 
notes for Housing York Inc. and submit them to York Region, in its role as 
Service Manager and Shareholder of the Corporation. 

2. The Board approve the 2015 Annual Information Return for the Housing 
York Inc. Provincial Reform Program and submit them to York Region, in 
its role as Service Manager and Shareholder of the Corporation. 

3. The Board approve the 2015 Annual Report for Housing York Inc.  

2. Purpose 

This report presents the annual draft Financial Statements for Housing York Inc. 
(Housing York) (Attachment 1), along with the Annual Information Return 
(Attachment 2), a housing program report mandated under the Housing Services 
Act, 2011, and the 2015 Annual Report (Attachment 3), for the Board of 
Directors’ approval. 

3. Background  

Housing York’s annual audit and financial statements 
comply with Regional and legislative requirements 

Housing York prepares audited financial statements that are consolidated in the 
Regional financial statements. The Housing York audit is performed concurrently 
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2015 Financial Statements 

with the Region’s audit ensuring that related-party transactions, such as subsidy 
transfers and payroll costs, are fully examined at the corporate and shareholder 
level. 

Annually, the Board approves Housing York financial statements, which are 
consolidated across all housing portfolios facilitating accurate year-over-year 
financial comparisons. 

In addition to consolidated financial statements, the auditors review an Annual 
Information Return which is prepared for the Provincial Reform portfolio 
properties as required under the Housing Services Act, 2011. The Annual 
Information Return is a summary of the Provincial Reform portfolio financial, 
operating, and statistical information for the fiscal year. The Service Manager 
uses this information to verify subsidy entitlement, assess compliance with the 
Housing Services Act, 2011, and for forecasting and budgeting purposes. 

The audited financial statements and audited Annual Information Return are 
presented to the Board in draft. Board approval is required prior to submission to 
the Region in its role as Service Manager and funder. 

The external auditors will be present at the Board meeting to answer questions 
for Board members. There will be an opportunity, as Board governance best 
practice, to ask questions of the auditors without staff being present. 

Housing York’s Annual Report that highlights accomplishments for the year and 
future strategic direction is also presented to the Board in draft, independently of 
the Regional Annual Report, and requires Board approval. 

Housing York’s portfolio operates under three distinct funding 
formulas 

Each portfolio has different funding rules and eligibility for subsidy depending on 
which legislation governs the portfolio. Table 1 summarizes Housing York’s 
eligibility for subsidy funding. 

Table 1 
Summary of Housing York’s 2015 Portfolios and Subsidy Eligibility 

No. of No. of 
Portfolio Buildings Construction Units Unit Mix Subsidy Eligibility 

Public 
Housing 17 1967 – 1979 872 Subsidy  100% Operating, which 

includes Capital 

Provincial 
Reform 12 1986 – 1994 1,038 

Subsidy   
Market  

 71% 
  29% 

Mortgage, Taxes, 
RGI Subsidy and 
Mandatory 
Contribution to 

Housing York Inc.  2 
June 9, 2016 
 



2015 Financial Statements 

No. of No. of 
Portfolio Buildings Construction Units Unit Mix Subsidy Eligibility 

Capital Reserve 

Regional 
Housing 7 2004 – 2014 531 

Subsidy    
Market    

62% 
38% 

Construction capital 
contribution  
No operating 
subsidy Rent 
assistance  

Total 36  2,441 Subsidy
Market   

   80% 
 20% 

 

4. Analysis and Options 

Housing York’s financial statements follow the typical format 
used by non-profit organizations 

The financial statements are comprised of a: 

• Balance Sheet 
• Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Retained Earnings 
• Statement of Cash Flows 
• Supplementary notes and tables 

 
The financial results are consolidated at the corporate level of Housing York as is 
customary for financial statement presentation. 

Housing York generated a healthy operating surplus of $534,601 
in 2015 

Table 2 
Housing York’s 2015 Operating Surplus 

 2015 Budget ($) 2015 Actual ($) 

Total Rental and Other Income 20,108,794 20,656,902  

Government Subsidies 10,373,323 8,913,430 

Total Revenues 30,482,117 29,570,332 

Total Operating Expenses* 30,151,642 29,035,731 

Excess Revenue over Expenditures $    330,475 $    534,601 
 

* Includes contributions to the capital reserve of $1,991,252 
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The Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Retained Earnings shows a 
surplus of $534,601 following the mandatory contributions to capital reserve. 

Although both total revenue and total operating expenses were lower than 
anticipated, the surplus is $204,126 higher than budgeted because of the 
significant net savings experienced both in the operating and public housing 
capital areas of the budget. 

Housing York receives a subsidy from the Region to cover the gap between 
rental revenue and operating costs for certain properties. In 2015, revenue was 
higher than expected and operating expenses were lower than expected, 
resulting in a lower regional subsidy.  In addition, a subsidy is provided for the 
provincial reform portfolio to supplement the difference between rent-geared-to-
income rents and market rents. In 2015, the subsidy needs related to rent-
geared-to income rents were less than anticipated. 

Rental revenue slightly above budget 

In 2015, rental revenue was $548,108 higher than budget mainly due to full year 
of operations for Lakeside Residences. The property was added to Housing 
York’s portfolio in mid-2014 and had a significant positive impact on 2015 rental 
revenue along with some increases from miscellaneous revenue. 

Table 3 provides a revenue summary for 2015. 

Table 3 
Summary of 2015 Revenues 

 
Revenue Summary 

 
2015 Budget ($) 

 
2015 Actual ($) 

$ Var. 
F/(U) 

% Var. 
F/(U) 

Rental & Other 
Income 

20,108,794 20,656,902 548,108  2.7% 

Government 
Subsidies 

10,373,323 8,913,430 (1,459,893) (14.1)% 

Total Revenues $30,482,117 $29,570,332 $(911,785) (3.0)% 

Operating expenditures lower than budget due to savings from 
mortgages renewal and utility costs 

Overall, 2015 operating expenses were $1,043,796 or 3.7% lower than budget as 
shown in Table 4. 
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Table 4 
Summary of 2015 Expenses 

Expenditure Summary 
2015 

Budget ($) 
2015   

Actual ($) 
$ Var.    
F/(U) 

% Var. 
F/(U) 

Mortgage/Lease 
Payments 9,453,596  9,140,458  313,138    3.3% 

Administration and 
Maintenance 10,206,214 9,969,447 236,767 2.3% 

Utilities 3,523,465 3,112,389 411,076 11.7% 

Property Taxes 2,749,659 3,004,072 (254,413) (9.3)% 

Public Housing Capital 1,403,506 1,126,851 276,655 19.7% 

Insurance 497,250  466,149 31,101 6.3% 

Shelter Costs 108,137 128,640 (20,503) (19.0)% 

Bad Debts 97,748 47,773 49,975 51.1% 

Total Expenditures $28,039,575 $26,995,779 $1,043,796 3.7% 

There are several drivers that have created the largest variance in the operating 
expense section of the budget. 

Housing York renewed four mortgages and paid out one mortgage in 2015. The 
mortgages were renewed at advantageous interest rates that led to major 
interest cost savings. 

The positive variance experienced in utility costs is due mainly to the mild 
weather conditions experienced in the second part of the year. The cooler 
summer months led to savings in energy costs while the mild winter months led 
to savings in heating costs. 

Housing York received additional charges via property taxes from King City for 
the sewer system construction connection of the old wing of Kingview Court to 
the city sewer system as well as an adjustment for the new wing of Kingview 
Court.  These charges amounted to $278,000 which was not included in the 
budget. 

Public Housing capital costs were under budget by almost 20% as a result of 
several jobs being rescheduled. Unused Public Housing capital funds are 
returned to the Region as part of the subsidy reconciliation. 

Unexpected costs related to the septic tank maintenance at Porter/Leeder site 
resulted in shelter costs being higher than budget. 

The bad debt qualifying for write-off that was approved by the President and by 
the Board was lower than the amount estimated in the budget. 
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Prudent financial management requires contributions to reserves 
and Retained Earnings 

In 2015, the contribution to capital reserve is $1,991,252 bringing the balance at 
the end of the year to $4,762,354.  

The 2015 surplus of $534,601surplus was allocated to Retained Earnings. In the 
2015 Budget, $404,000 was approved by the Board to be transferred from 
Retained Earnings to an Emergency Power Project reserve resulting in a 
Retained Earnings balance of $3,183,437. 

The balance sheet remains healthy  

As at December 31, 2015, Housing York has total assets of $159,598,067 (cost 
basis) of which 90% (92% in 2014) are in property holdings, net of accumulated 
amortization. 

Total net assets are $4,433,541 or 3% lower than 2014. This decrease is due 
mainly to the payment of the current portion of the outstanding mortgages 
payable. Table 5 summarizes the three main asset categories. 

Table 5 
Asset Summary 

Balance Sheet – Assets Categories 2015  2014 

Current Assets 7,554,461 6,592,806 

Restricted Cash and Investments 8,025,880 7,206,178 

Property Holdings 144,017,726 150,232,624 

Total Assets $159,598,067 $164,031,608 

A $500, 000 BC Province bond that reached maturity on December 18, 2015 was 
redeemed having a a positive impact on the current assets balance, while the 
increase in Restricted Cash and Investments  is due to the contribution to the 
Emergency Power Project reserve. 

Restricted cash and investment items include tenant rental deposits, capital 
reserve, internal reserves, and investments related to surplus operating funds. 

Lower liability obligations than 2014  

On December 31, 2015, Housing York had total liabilities of $79,559,856 (down 
5.6% from 2014) comprised of current liabilities of $11,328,401 or 14% and 
building financing of $68,231,455 or 86%.  

Table 6 summarizes the liability categories. 
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Table 6 
Liability Summary 

Balance Sheet – Short and Long Term Liabilities 2015 2014 

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 2,739,130 2,176,168 

Deferred Revenue 1,028,628 988,890 

Amounts Due to York Region 2,559,617 1,702,304 

Current Portion of Mortgage Payable 5,001,026 29,091884 

Current Liabilities $11,328,401 $33,959,246 
   
Loan Agreements 5,834,000 5,834,000 

Mortgages Payable  62,397,455 44,521,495 

Building Financing $68,231,455 $50,355,495 
   
Total Liabilities $79,559,856 $84,314,741 

The largest liabilities shown on the Balance Sheet consist of mortgages payable 
and loan agreements. They represent various financing obligations on buildings 
within the Provincial Reform and Regional Housing portfolios. 

The current portion of mortgage payable is lower than last year due to five 
mortgages renewed in 2015. These mortgages were reclassified as long-term 
liabilities and only the portion payable within the first 12 months after the renewal 
are included in current liabilities. This reclassification between current and long-
term liability is done in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

The amount owing to the Region consists of various payroll, administrative, and 
subsidy settlement charges.   

Housing York continues to have a healthy equity balance 

In 2015 total equity increased by $321,344 for a total equity of $80,038,211. 

Table 7 summarizes the equity categories. 

Table 7 
Summary of Equity 

Balance Sheet Equity 2015 2014 

Reserve Fund for Capital Equipment Replacement 4,762,354 4,952,608 

Reserve for Operating Contingency 47,400 23,700 

Reserve Fund for Emergency Power Project 598,090 276,117 
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Balance Sheet Equity 2015 2014 

Reserve Fund for Insurance Deductibles 185,324 180,000 

Reserve Fund for Shelter Furniture Replacement 30,000 - 

Shareholder Contribution 71,231,606 71,231,606 

Retained Earnings 3,183,437 3,052,836 

Total Equity $80,038,211 $79,716,867 

Statement of Cash Flows validates reported Balance Sheet 
results 

This statement monitors the movement of funds in and out of Housing York 
throughout the year. The amount of $6,639,587 at the end of 2015 reconciles to 
the cash account identified on the Balance Sheet and is viewed to be sufficient 
cash flow to maintain normal operations. There are no unusual cash flow 
activities reported during the period. 

Housing York is committed to maintaining a quality housing 
asset pool 

Over 90 capital projects were completed during the fiscal year representing a 
$3.38 million investment in capital repairs/replacement. This is reflective of 
Housing York’s commitment to manage its properties effectively according to the 
Housing York Strategic Plan 2012 – 2016. Capital reserves decreased from 
$4,952,608 at the beginning of the year to $4,762,354 at the end of the year, as 
noted in Table 7. 

Highlights of the 2015 Annual Report 

Housing York had a busy and productive 2015. Key accomplishments highlighted 
in the annual report include: 

• Opened Belinda’s Place, York Region’s first emergency housing facility for 
homeless women 

• Invested more than $3.4 million in capital projects to maintain buildings in 
top condition and make improvements that benefit tenants 

• Collaborated with partners to connect tenants with more services and 
programs and to encourage community engagement 

• Developed a five-year plan to maximize building safety and security 
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• Saved energy and utility costs by introducing energy conservation 
programs at select older buildings and upgrading appliances  

• Conducted a review of information technology systems to support 
innovation and optimize future investments  

Link to key Council-approved plans 

Housing York’s 2015 Financial Statements support and complement the Region’s 
housing goals as outlined in corporate policies such as Vision 2051, the 
Sustainability Strategy, the Region’s 2011-2015 Strategic Plan and the Regional 
Official Plan. 

5. Financial Implications 

Housing York ended the year in a positive position and the following are 
indicators of its net financial position as at December 31, 2015: 

• Total liabilities decreased by 5.6% or $4,754,885 improving debt to equity 
ratio by 7% mainly due to mortgages payable and loan agreements 
repayment. 

• Retained Earnings increased from $3,052,836 to $3,183,437 due to surplus 
allocation net of Emergency Power project reserve contribution. An increasing 
level of Retained Earnings will better position Housing York to address future 
financial needs.  

• Capital reserve balance decreased from $4,952,608 to $4,762,354 mainly 
due to the increased level of investment in capital repairs/replacement. 

6. Local Municipal Impact 

Housing York provides safe, well-maintained affordable housing throughout local 
municipalities in York Region. 

7. Conclusion 

Housing York continues to operate in accordance with program requirements and 
funding formula expectations. Prudent financial management focused on 
maintaining solid rental revenue performance and expenditure optimization lead 
to $534,601 surplus in 2015 fostering the company’s strong financial health. The 
$3.38 million in major repairs and retrofits completed during the year is reflective 
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of Housing York’s commitment to manage its properties effectively and maintain 
a quality asset pool. 

For more information on this report, please contact Michelle Musgrave, Acting 
Chief Financial Officer at ext. 72746. 

The Senior Management Group has reviewed this report. 

Recommended by: 

 

 
Rick Farrell 
General Manager 

 

 

 
Michelle Musgrave 
Acting Chief Financial Officer 

Approved for Submission: 

 

 

Adelina Urbanski 
President 

 

May 25, 2016 

Attachments (3) 

#6714007 

Accessible formats or communication supports are available upon request 
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DRAFT#5 
Apri/14, 2016 

Financial Statements of 

HOUSING YORK INC. 

Year ended December 31, 2015 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of Housing York Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Housing York Inc., which comprise the 
balance sheet as at December 31, 2015, the statements of revenue, expenditures and retained 
earnings and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. The financial statements have been prepared 
by management in accordance with the financial reporting provisions of Section 80(2) of the Housing 
Services Act, 2011 and guidance in its application issued by the Housing and Long Term Care 
Branch of the Regional Municipality of York. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with the financial reporting provisions of Section 80(2) of the Housing Services Act, 2011 
and guidance in its application issued by the Housing and Long Term Care Branch of the Regional 
Municipality of York, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Housing York Inc. as at December 31 , 2015, and its results of operations and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting provisions of Section 80(2) of the Housing 
Services Act, 2011 and guidance in its application issued by the Housing and Long Term Care 
Branch of the Regional Municipality of York. 

Basis ofAccounting 

Without modifying our op1n1on, we draw attention to note 1 to the financial statements, which 
describes the basis of accounting. The financial statements are prepared to assist Housing York Inc. 
to meet the requirements of the Housing and Long Term Care Branch of the Regional Municipality of 
York. As a result, the financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose. 

Restriction on Use 

Our report is intended solely for Housing York Inc. and Housing and Long Term Care Branch of the 
Regional Municipality of York and should not be used by parties other than Housing York Inc. or the 
Housing and Long Term Care Branch of the Regional Municipality of York. 

DRAFT 
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

Toronto, Canada 



HOUSING YORK INC. 
DRAFT Balance Sheet 

December 31 , 2015, with comparative figures for 2014 

2015 2014 

Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash 
Accounts receivable: 

Rents 
Harmonized sales tax 
Other · 

Pre~aid ex~enses 

$ 6,639,587 

266,839 
161 ,700 

83,058 
403,277 

$ 5,671,563 

289,475 
81,273 
95,246 

455,249 

Restricted cash and investments: 
Rental deposits 
Reserve fund deposits 
Emergency Power Plan Reserve 
Insurance Reserve 
Operations Reserve 
Shelter Furniture Replacement Reserve 
Reserve fund investments (note 5) 
O~erati ng fund investments {note 5} 

7,554,461 

635,923 
1,942,771 

598,090 
185,324 
47,400 
30,000 

3,081,583 
1,504,789 

6,592,806 

629,002 
1,033,603 

276,117 
180,000 
23,700 

3,026,717 
2,037,039 

Property holdings (note 2) 

Furniture and fixtures 

8,025,880 

143,782,094 

235,632 

7,206,178 

149,996,991 

235,633 

$ 159,598,067 $ 164,031 ,608 
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2015 2014 

Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Deferred revenue 
Amounts due to Regional Municipality of York, 

without interest or terms of repayment 
Current eortion of mortgages ea:rable (note 3} 

$ 2,739,130 
1,028,628 

2,559,617 
5,001,026 

$ 2,176,168 
988,890 

1,702,304 
29,0911884 

Building financing: 
Loan agreements (note 3) 
Mortgages ea:rable (note 3} 

11,328,401 

5,834,000 
62,397,455 

33,959,246 

5,834,000 
44,521,495 

Shareholder's Equity (note 4): 
Reserve fund for Capital Repair and 

Replacement 
Reserve fund for Emergency Power Plan Project 
Reserve fund for Insurance Reserve 
Reserve for Operations 
Reserve Fund for Shelter Furniture Replacement 
Shareholder's equity 
Retained earnings 

68,231 ,455 

4,762,354 
598,090 
185,324 
47,400 
30,000 

71 ,231 ,606 
3,183,437 

50,355,495 

4,952,608 
276,117 
180,000 
23,700 

71 ,231 ,606 
3,052,836 

80,038,211 79,716,867 

$ 159,598,067 $ 164,031 ,608 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

On behalf of the Board: 

------------- Director 

------------- Director 
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2015 
Budget 

2015 
Actual 

2014 
Actual 

Revenue: 
Rental 
Non-rental 
Operating subsidies (note 6) 
Oeerating surelus 

$ 19,255,996 
600,516 

10,295,130 
330,475 

$ 19,576,265 
902,246 

8,557,220 
534,601 

$ 18,899,997 
786,376 

8,663,987 
457,214 

Expenditures: 
Mortgage payments (note 3) 
Administration and maintenance 
Property taxes 
Utilities 
Capital 
Insurance 
Shelter 
Bad debts 

30,482,117 

9,453,596 
10,206,214 

2,749,659 
3,523,465 
1,403,506 

497,250 
108,137 

97,748 

29,570,332 

9,140,458 
9,969,447 
3,004,072 
3,112,389 
1 '126,851 

466,149 
128,640 
47,773 

28,807,574 

9,437,377 
9,466,070 
2,820,420 
2,864,464 
1,304,261 

443,408 
105,120 
52,950 

28,039,575 26,995,779 26,494,070 

Excess of revenue over expenditures 
before the undernoted 

Contribution to Capital Reserve (note 4) 
Contribution to Operations Reserve (note 4) 

2,442,542 

2,102,367 
9,700 

2,574,553 

1,991 ,252 
23,700 

2,313,504 

1,782,441 
23,700 

Excess of revenue over expenditures $ 

Retained earnings, beginning of year 

Internal allocations: 
Contribution from Insurance Reserve (note 4) 
Emergency Power Plan - additional 

contribution (note 4) 

330,475 559,601 

3,052,836 

(25,000) 

(404,000) 

507,363 

2,595,622 

(50, 149) 

Retained earnings, end of year $ 3,183,437 $ 3,052,836 

HOUSING YORK INC. 
DRAFT Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Retained Earnings 

Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative figures for 2014 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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HOUSING YORK INC. 
DRAFT Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended December 31 , 2015, with comparative figures for 2014 

2015 2014 

Cash provided by (used in): 

Operating activities: 
Excess of revenue over expenditures 
Amortization of income-producing properties 

$ 559,601 $ 507,363 

which does not involve cash 6,214,898 4 ,501 ,130 
Cash contributions to/from reserves (238,257) 101,206 
Change in non-cash operating working capital: 

Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Deferred revenue 

(45,603) 
51,972 

562,962 
39,738 

520,763 
(50,979) 

(218,355) 
65,158 

Amounts due to/from Regional Munici12ali~ of York 857,313 p,869,553) 
8,002,624 3,556,733 

Financing activities: 
Principal repayment (6,214,898) (4,501,130) 

Investing activities: 
Increase in restricted cash - rental deposits 
Increase in restricted cash - reserve fund deposits 

(6,921) 
(909,168) 

(58,499) 
89,886 

Decrease in restricted cash - reserve fund 
investments (54,866) (60,019) 

Decrease in restricted cash - Emergency Power 
Plan Reserve 

Decrease in restricted cash - Insurance Reserve fund 
Increase in restricted cash - Operations Reserve 
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash- Strategic Projects 

(321,973) 
(5,324) 

(23,700) 

41 ,746 

(23,700) 
10,217 

Decrease in restricted cash -Shelter Furniture 
Replacement Reserve 

Increase in oeerating fund investments 
(30,000) 
532,250 32,869 

{819,702} 32!500 

Increase (decrease) in cash 968,024 (911,897) 


Cash, beginning of year 5,671,563 6 ,583,460 


Cash, end of year $ 6,639,587 $ 5,671 ,563 

Supplemental cash flow information: 
Property holdings donated $ $ 19,405,805 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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HOUSING YORK INC. 
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31 , 2015 

Housing York Inc. (the "Corporation") was incorporated in accordance with Section 182 of the Ontario 

Business Corporations Act on January 1, 2003. The Regional Municipality of York (the "Region") is 

the sole shareholder of the Corporation. 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

(a) Basis of presentation: 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting policies that 

comply with Section 80(2) of the Housing Services Act, 2011 (the "Act") and guidance in its 

application issued by the Housing and Long Term Care Branch of the Region. Canadian 

generally accepted accounting principles ("Canadian GAAP") has been interpreted to mean 

Canadian public sector accounting standards and the 4200 standards for government not­
for-profit organizations. 

The basis of accounting used in these financial statements materially differs from Canadian 
GAAP because: 

(i) Amortization: 

Beginning in 2012, amortization is not provided on property holdings and furniture and 

fixtures over the estimated useful lives of these assets. This currently includes Tom 
Taylor Place, Leeder Place family shelter, Kingview Court Expansion, Mackenzie 

Green, and Lakeside Residences. 

Amortization is not provided on Provincial Reform Program property holdings over the 

estimated useful lives of these assets but rather at a rate equal to the annual principal 

repayments on these mortgages. 

(ii) Income-producing properties: 

Income-producing properties that were transferred to the Public Housing Program on 

December 14, 2000 by the Province of Ontario are carried at a nominal value of $1 as 

the fair value of the properties was not readily available at the time of the transfer. 

Income-producing properties that are reported for the Provincial Reform Program 

include land, buildings, equipment and other capitalized costs and are recorded at cost, 
net of any government grants or contributions. 
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HOUSING YORK INC. 
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31 , 2015 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

As described in the Act, costs incurred by the Provincial Reform Program to modernize 
or improve existing income-producing properties, which have the effect of extending the 
useful life of the property or increasing its value, are funded from the Capital Repair 
and Replacement Reserve. The Public Housing Program has no Capital Repair and 
Replacement Reserve; therefore, these expenses are reflected as operating expenses. 
The Regional Housing Program is expected to be self-sustaining and funds its own 
Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve through surplus operating funds. 

(iii) Other property holdings: 

The Corporation owns the Blue Door Shelters site, a non-revenue-producing property 
location with multiple buildings that serve as emergency shelters. Porter Place, the 
men's shelter, receives subsidy under the Act and is, therefore, reported in the same 
manner as the Corporation's other Provincial Reform Program locations. 

In 2009, the Corporation added a new family shelter building known as Leeder Place to 
the Blue Door Shelters site. The old Leeder Place family shelter has been closed and 
its disposition is under review. 

During 2004, the Region implemented the Regional Housing Program which the 
Corporation manages on behalf of the shareholder. A long-term lease agreement was 
created for each leased property. The land, building and equipment for the leased sites 
are not reflected in the Corporation's book of accounts. 

Addition Ownership 
Property year type 

Armitage Garden 2004 Leased 
Blue Willow 2006 Leased 
Tom Taylor Place 2008 Owned 
Kingview Court Expansion 2011 Owned 
Mapleglen Residences 2012 Leased 
Mackenzie Green 2013 Owned 
Lakeside Residences 2014 Owned 

The sites owned by the Corporation are recorded on the books at transfer cost between 
the shareholder and the Corporation. 
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HOUSING YORK INC. 
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31 , 2015 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(iv) Appropriations to/from Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve fund: 

Appropriations to/from the Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve fund are reported 
on the statement of revenue. expenditures and retained earnings. Expenditures made 
from Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve fund are reported within this fund and 
not on the statement of revenue, expenditures and retained earnings. Interest income 
earned on investments of Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve fund is credited 
directly to the Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve fund and is not reported on the 
statement of revenue, expenditures and retained earnings. 

(v) Financial instruments: 

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition. 

Under Program Instruction 2008-02 issued by the Region. the Corporation 
subsequently records its investments at book value. Gains or losses associated with 
capital reserve investments are recognized at redemption. 

Financial instruments are adjusted by transaction costs incurred on acquisition and 
financing costs. 

All financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis. When a decline is 
determined to be other than temporary, the amount of the loss is reported in the 
statements of revenue. expenditures and retained earnings. 

Long-term debt is recorded at cost. 

(b) Other reserve funds: 

The Corporation established reserve funds from retained earnings for expenditures 
approved by the Board of Directors. These funds are specifically restricted for emergency 
power plan and insurance deductible expenditures. These are discussed further in note 4. 
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HOUSING YORK INC. 
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31 , 2015 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(c) Bad debts: 

The funding formula does not recognize a provision for doubtful accounts. Therefore, bad 

debts are recognized as an expense in the year that write-off has occurred. The 

Corporation· applies a collection of tenant accounts policy, which indicates that former 

tenant arrears that meet certain criteria are eligible for write-off annually. 

(d) Operations: 

As of December 31 , 2015, the portfolio consists of 37 multi-residential buildings and an 

emergency shelter site. While the Corporation owns the shelter site, daily operations are 

provided by Blue Door Shelter through an operating agreement. 

(e) Subsidy reconciliation- operating subsidies: 

The Corporation is subsidized for certain occupancy costs relating to Provincial Reform 
Program and Public Housing Program properties administered by the Corporation. Any 

surplus funding received must be repaid in full to the Region. The Regional Housing 

Program is not eligible to receive operating subsidy. 

The final subsidy amount to be received by the Corporation for the current fiscal year will 

not be determined until the Service Manager reviews the Corporation's financial and 
statistical returns. Corporation's management considers the subsidy receivable (payable) 

to include all appropriate adjustments for non-allowable costs. Any adjustments to the 

subsidy will be accounted for in the year it is determined. 

(f) Furniture and fixtures: 

Furniture and fixtures are recorded at cost. 
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HOUSING YORK INC. 
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2015 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(g) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date o{ the financial statements, and the reported 
amounts of revenue and expenditures during the year. Significant items subject to such 
estimates and assumptions include the carrying amount of property holdings. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

2015 2014 

Incoming-producing properties: 
Land $ 25,232,345 $ 25,232,345 
Buildings 96,2321555 96,232!555 

121 ,464, 900 121,464,900 

Less accumulated amortization 54,066,419 47,851,522 

Net book value $ 67,398 481 $ 73,613,378 

Other properties: 
Land $ 8,439,742 $ 8,439,742 
Buildings 68,703,864 68,703,864 

77,143,606 77,143,606 

Less accumulated amortization 759,993 759,993 

Net book value $ 76,383,613 $ 76,383,613 

2. Property holdings: 

2015 2014 

Total property holdings: 
Land $ 33,672,087 $ 33,672,087 
Buildings 164,936,419 164,936,419 

198,608,506 198,608,506 

Less accumulated amortization 54,826,414 48,611,515 

Net book value $ 143,782,094 $ 149,996,991 
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HOUSING YORK INC. 
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December31 , 2015 

3. Mortgages payable: 

(a) Mortgages payable applicable to buildings in the Provincial Reform Program: 

Property Particulars 2015 2014 

Glenwood Mews Mortgage payable, bearing interest 
at 1.120% per annum with blended 
monthly payments of $33,423, 
maturing February 1, 2020 $ 3,402,224 $ 3,753,120 

Keswick Gardens Mortgage payable, bearing interest 
at 6.996% per annum with blended 
monthly payments of $70,011 , 
maturing January 1, 2025 6,464,662 6,844,633 

Springbrook Gardens Mortgage payable, bearing interest 
at 5.912% per annum with blended 
monthly payments of $87,877, 
maturing January 1, 2024 8,538,753 9,077,413 

Mulock Village Mortgage payable, bearing interest 
at 4.547% per annum with blended 
monthly payments of $80,593, 
maturing March 1, 2017 8,525,820 9,094,934 

Heritage East Mortgage payable, bearing interest 
at 1.850% per annum with blended 
monthly payments of $73,639, 
maturing October 1, 2020 9,151,260 9,828,110 

Hadley Grange Mortgage payable, bearing interest at 
4.486% per annum with blended 
monthly payments of $43,297, 
maturing February 1, 2018 4,875,983 5,171,665 

Brayfield Manor Mortgage payable, bearing interest 
at 5.940% per annum with blended 
monthly payments of $70,757, 
maturing July 1, 2028 7,546,576 7,940,245 

Oxford Village Mortgage payable, bearing interest 
at 1.830% per annum with blended 
monthly payments of $14,781 , 
maturing June 1, 2025 2,224,522 2,347,509 

Rose Town Mortgage payable, bearing interest 
at 1.880% per annum with blended 
monthly payments of $39,771 , 
maturing December 1, 2022 3,128,727 3,543,175 
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HOUSING YORK INC. 
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31,2015 

3. Mortgages payable (continued): 

Property Particulars 2015 2014 

Woodbridge Lane 

Trinity Square 

Thornhill Green 

Blue Door Shelter -
Porter Place 

Mortgage payable, bearing interest 
at 4.742% per annum with blended 
monthly payments of $11,214, 
maturing April 1, 2015 

Mortgage payable, bearing interest 
at 2.315% per annum with blended 
monthly payments of $68.160, 
maturing March 1, 2025 

Mortgage payable, bearing interest 
at 2.112% per annum with blended 
monthly payments of $36,679, 
maturity December 1, 2017 

Mortgage payable, bearing interest at 
4.443% per annum with blended 
monthly payments of $8,609, 
maturing September 1, 2018 

8,098,982 

4,721,341 

719,631 

1,463,301 

8,701,330 

5,058,365 

789,579 

Less current portion 

67,398,481 

5,001,026 

73,613,379 

29,091,884 

$ 62,397,455 $ 44,521,495 

Principal repayments are as follows: 

2016 $ 5,001,026 
2017 16,518,439 
2018 8,762,625 
2019 4,093,267 
2020 11,190,490 
Thereafter 21 ,832,634 

$ 67,398,481 

(b) Tom Taylor Place: 

Tom Taylor Place, a 50-unit facility in the Town of Newmarket, opened October 1, 2008. 
The building was constructed by the Region through the New Affordable Housing Program, 

which offers funding partnerships with the federal and provincial governments. The 
building is owned by the Corporation; however, the financial reporting does not fall under 
the Act like the other income-producing properties owned by the Corporation. 
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HOUSING YORK INC. 
DRAFTNotes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31 , 2015 

3. Mortgages payable (continued): 

The Corporation purchased the land for this building in January 2006 for $315,000. 
Financing for the building was structured in 2009, which includes Regional debentures and 
other loan agreements which are described below: 

Amounts payable to shareholder (i) $ 4,434,000 
Federal forgivable loan (ii) 1,400,000 

5,834,000 

Shareholder contribution (iii) 3,720,635 

$ 9,554,635 

(i) 	 The amount payable to the shareholder is made up of two components: 

A long-term loan in the amount of $2,334,000 is repayable to the Region from rent 
revenue generated at the building. The Region has debentured this amount on the 
Corporation's behalf. Repayment terms are based on a 30-year amortization schedule. 

The remaining amount payable to shareholder is $2,100,000 for a second debenture 
financed by the Region. Under the New Affordable Housing Program, the province 
flows funds to the Corporation which, in turn, forwards the funds to the Region to pay 
the debenture. These provincial contributions are forgivable advances subjected to 
similar terms and conditions applicable to federal forgivable loan as discussed below. 
The term of the Regional debenture is 20 years. 

(ii) 	 The federal forgivable loan of $1,400,000 is provided through the Canada - Ontario 
New Affordable Housing Program agreement. This loan is to be fully forgiven on the 
last day of the month at the end of the term of the loan. The term of the loan is 20 
years maturing in 2028 and the amounts are forgiven provided all terms and conditions 
of the agreement are satisfied by the Corporation. The loan is interest-bearing with the 
interest rate, being the higher of the average posted rate offered by major Canadian 
lending institutions for a commercial first mortgage having a five-year term. plus 2% or 
the interest rate applicable to the first mortgage registered against title to the property, 
plus 2%. The interest, however, is to be fully forgiven on an annual basis provided all 
terms and conditions of the agreement are satisfied by the Corporation. 
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HOUSING YORK INC. 
DRAFTNotes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31 , 2015 

3. Mortgages payable (continued): 

(iii) The shareholder contribution 	in the amount of $3,720,635 represents a gift from the 
Region to the Corporation to fully finance the cost of the Tom Taylor Place not covered 
by the Canada - Ontario New Affordable Housing Program. 

(c) 	 Blue Door Shelters- Leeder Place: 

The new Leeder Place family shelter, with a construction cost valued at $2,836,826, was 
developed by the Region on existing lands owned the Corporation. It was gifted to the 
Corporation without any financing obligations. 

(d) Kingview Court Expansion: 

Kingview Court Expansion, a 39-unit facility in the Town of King, opened October 26, 2011 . 
The building was constructed through the New Affordable Housing Program, which offers 
funding partnerships with the federal and provincial governments by the Region with a cost 
of $7,847,469, including $98,644 in furniture and fixtures. The building is owned by the 
Corporation and it was gifted without any financing obligations. The financial reporting 
does not fall under the Act like the other income-producing properties owned by the 
Corporation. 

(e) Mackenzie Green: 

Mackenzie Green, a 140-unit facility in the Town of Richmond Hill, opened March 15, 2013. 
The building was constructed with funding provided through: Canada-Ontario Affordable 
Housing Program 2009 Extension $16,800,000; York Region Investing in Ontario Funding 
$11 ,011 ,000; Developing Opportunities for Ontario Renters Funding $2,409,000; and 
Social Housing Development Charges Reserve $1,350,871 . The building is owned by the 
Corporation and it was gifted with a $5,850,000 financial obligation serviced through 
tenants rent. The financial reporting is similar to the other properties not covered by the 
Act. 
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HOUSING YORK INC. 
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31 , 2015 

3. Mortgages payable (continued): 

(f) Lakeside Residences: 

Lakeside Residences, a 97-unit facility in the Town of Georgina, purchased on June 15, 
2014. The building was constructed with funding provided through: Investment in 

Affordable Housing for Ontario Program $12,489,748; York Region Investing in Ontario 
Funding; $5,788,386; York Region Social Housing Development Reserve $1,178,795 and 
the Sundry Revenue account $17,393. The building is owned by the Corporation and it 
was gifted with no financial obligation. The financial reporting is similar to the other 
properties not covered by the Act. 

4. Reserve funds: 

In addition to the Capital Reserve fund that has always been maintained by the Corporation, 
the Board of Directors and the Region have approved additional reserves for specified 
purposes. 

(a) Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve fund: 

In accordance with the Act, the use of the Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve fund is 
limited to the replacement. enhancement or repair of existing capital assets, or the 
purchase of new capital assets for the Provincial Reform Program. Funding for capital 
expenditures is obtained through the Region, through the subsidy payment process, and 
through an annual operating surplus sharing agreement. 

Buildings in the Regional Housing Program contribute a significant portion of annual 
surplus operating funds to a Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve fund for future major 
repairs and replacements within this program. For presentation purposes, all capital 
reserve funds are reported on a consolidated basis. 

The Corporation does not maintain a Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve fund 

account for the Public Housing Program. 
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HOUSING YORK INC. 
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2015 

4. Reserve funds (continued): 

The Corporation has a 1 0-year capital plan for managing expenses from capital reserves, 

which has been approved through a separate process. 

2015 2014 

Balance, beginning of year $ 4,952,608 $ 4,772,990 

Funding from Region 329,085 205,078 
Transfer in from operating 1,662,167 1,782,441 
Interest earned 68,772 77,495 
Caeital exeenditures {2,250,278} {1 ,885,396) 
Net activity (190,254) 179,618 

Balance, end of year $ 4,762,354 $ 4,952,608 

(b) Emergency Power Plan: 

Following the examination of the Corporation's emergency power capabilities in a long-term 

power outage, the Board of Directors approved the use of $910,500 from retained earnings 
to fund emergency power upgrades in several apartment buildings. The multi-year plan 

addresses operational and tenant safety issues. A major generator installation was 

scheduled for completion in 2014, which was later deferred to 2015 along with a second 

major generator installation. An additional $404,000 from retained earnings was requested 
and approved in the 2015 budget to cover the cost of the two installations. 

2015 2014 

Balance, beginning of year $ 276,117 $ 317,863 

Direct costs (82,027) (41 ,746) 

Additional Contribution 404,000 

Balance, end of :lear $ 598,090 $ 276,117 
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HOUSING YORK INC. 
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31 , 2015 

4. Reserve funds (continued): 

(c) Insurance Reserve: 

The Corporation maintains property insurance on all buildings through the Social Housing 
Services Corporation. This is a pooled insurance program available for housing providers 
in Ontario. 

The Corporation takes all reasonable measures to mitigate insurance claims through 
aggressive risk management strategies. However, the unpredictable nature of insurance 
claims has the potential to create unforeseen impacts on operating expenses on a 

year-over-year basis as frequency and severity of incidents cannot be forecasted. 

As an alternative to using operating funds on an as-required basis for insurance-related 
costs, the Board of Directors appmved the establishment of a reserve fund to facilitate a 
more predictable draw on operating expenses. The initial contribution to the reserve from 
retained earnings was $200,000 in 2006 with a budgeted annual contribution thereafter. 

Based on reserve activity from prior years, the Board of Directors approved adjustments to 
the threshold balance of the reserve, as well as the annual contribution limit in 201 0. The 
reserve balance will continue to be monitored yearly for adequacy against claims costs. 

Insurance costs related to deductibles on claims and small settlements will be paid from the 
Insurance Reserve fund. The combination of the insurance policy and the Insurance 
Reserve fund provides financial protection from catastrophic loss. 

2015 2014 

Balance, beginning of year $ 180,000 $ 180,000 

Contribution to reserve 25,000 25,000 
Discretionary contribution to reserve 25,149 
Claims eaid, net of recoveries ~19,676} ~50 1 149) 
Net activity 5,324 

Balance, end of ;tear $ 185,324 $ 180,000 
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HOUSING YORK INC. 
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31,2015 

4. Reserve funds (continued): 

(d) Operating Contingency Reserve: 

Management sets up a Contingency Fund for maintenance costs for two properties: 
Mackenzie Green and Lakeside Residences. 

2015 2014 

Balance, beginning of year $ 23,700 $ 
Contribution to reserve 23,700 23,700 

Balance, end of year $ 47,400 $ 23,700 

(e) Shareholder's equity: 

Mackenzie Green was constructed by the Region and was gifted to the Corporation with a 
$5,850,000 financing obligation serviced through tenants rent. As amortization is not 
provided on Mackenzie Green, the contribution of Mackenzie Green is recognized as a 
direct increase in shareholder's equity in the amount of $37,420,871 in 2013. 

Lakeside Residences was constructed by the Region and was gifted to the Corporation. As 
amortization is not provided on Lakeside Residences, the contribution of Lakeside 
Residences is recognized as a direct increase in the shareholder's equity in the amount of 
$19,405,805. 

2015 2014 

Balance, beginning of year $ 71 ,231,606 $ 51 ,825,801 


Contributions 19,405,805 


Balance, end of year $ 71 ,231,606 $ 71,231,606 
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HOUSING YORK INC. 
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31 , 2015 

5. Restricted investments: 

During 2005, the Corporation adopted an Investment Strategy Policy, which includes the 
management of mandatory investment of the Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve fund, 
as well as the investment of surplus operating funds. The policy prescribes to a conservative 
investment approach that carries a low to moderate risk tolerance similar to investment 
strategies adopted by the Region. 

(a) Reserve fund investments: 

Under the requirements of the Act, housing providers are required to invest their Capital 
Repair and Replacement Reserve fund in an investment pool designed for housing 
providers. The Corporation has participated in this mandatory program since its inception 
and, from time to time, adjusts its investment mix to reflect its risk profile and to improve its 
overall returns. 

Reserve fund investments are comprised of the following: 

2015 2014 

Security description: 
Social Housing Canadian 

Short Term Bond Fund $ 3,072,375 $ 3,017,979 
Social Housing Canadian 

Bond Fund 3,394 3,232 
Social Housing Canadian 

Equity Fund 5,814 5,506 

Total reserve fund investments $ 3,081 ,583 $ 3,026,717 
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HOUSING YORK INC. 
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2015 

5. Restricted investments (continued): 

(b) Operating fund investments: 

Surplus operating funds are invested to improve upon the return that would otherwise be 
made earning bank interest. Surplus operating funds would include restricted funds from 

retained earnings and short-term cash flow excesses not needed to support operations. 
Investments of this nature typically fall into a short-term investment horizon of three months 
to four years. Operating fund investments are comprised of the following : 

Yield to 
2015 Par value Maturity date maturity 

Security description: 
CIBC Bank Deposit Note $ 1,000,000 January 14, 2016 2.302% 
Province of Ontario Bond 500,000 September 8, 2016 1.736% 

Unamortized premiums (discounts) 4,789 

Total oeeratin9 fund investments $ 1,504,789 

Yield to 
2014 Par value Maturity date maturity 

Security description: 
CIBC Bank Deposit Note $ 1,000,000 January 14, 2016 2.302% 
Province of British Columbia Bond 500,000 December 18, 2015 1.531% 
Province of Ontario Bond 500,000 September 8, 2016 1.736% 

Unamortized premiums (discounts) 37,039 

Total oeeratin9 fund investments $ 2,037,039 
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HOUSING YORK INC. 
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31 , 2015 

6. Related party transactions: 

(a) During the year, the Corporation received net subsidies as summarized below: 

2015 2014 

Subsidies: 
Provincial Reform Program $ 6,565,280 $ 6,584,529 
Public Housing Program 2,725,002 2,413,236 
Blue Door Shelters 115,644 115,587 
Other 80,702 50,435 

9,486,628 9,163,787 

Less surplus subsidy payable to System 
Service Manager 929,408 499,800 

$ 8,557 220 $ 8,663,987 

The Region provided contracted services of personnel, rental of office space and other 
administrative costs. The cost of these services, aggregating $7,393,339 (2014 ­
$5,888,218), was charged to administration and maintenance. 

(b) Buildings in the Regional Housing Program are financed by the Region. The collection of 
tenants' rent is used to pay the financing costs and the Corporation issued payments to the 
Region to fund the debentures payable. The payments issued for Armitage Garden, Blue 
Willow Terrace, Tom Taylor Place, Mapleglen Residences and Mackenzie Green amounted 
to $1 ,532,316 (2014- $1 ,532,316). 

7. Financial risks and concentration of credit risk: 

(a) Credit risk: 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty may default on its contractual obligations 
resulting in a financial loss. The Corporation is exposed to credit risk with respect to the 
accounts receivable and cash. 

The Corporation assesses, on a continuous basis, accounts receivable and writes off any 
amounts that are not considered to be collectible during the year. The maximum exposure 

to credit risk of the Corporation at December 31 , 2015 is the carrying value of these assets. 
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HOUSING YORK INC. 
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31 , 2015 

7. Financial risks and concentration of credit risk (continued): 

(b) Liquidity risk: 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will be unable to fulfill its obligations on a timely 
basis or at a reasonable cost. The Corporation manages its liquidity risk by monitoring its 
operating requirements. The Corporation prepares a budget to ensure it has sufficient 
funds to fulfill its obligations. 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are generally due immediately within receipt of an 
invoice. 

8. Subsequent events: 

A new development, Belinda's Place Women Shelter, will be added to the Corporation's 
portfolio in the first quarter of 2016. This building in the Town of Newmarket will be owned by 
the Corporation but operated by a third party provider through an operating agreement. This 
building will feature 28 emergency beds and 9 transitional units. 

The Richmond Hill Hub building will be added to the portfolio in the Town of Richmond Hill in 
01 of 2016. This building will feature 202 mixed units and a youth shelter. 
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Working with internal and external partners, 
Housing York Inc.’s goal is to support healthy 
communities through a broad range of 
housing choices and supports that meet the 
diverse needs of York Region residents. 

About Housing York 

Housing York Inc. (Housing York) is a municipal housing provider regulated by the 
Housing Services Act, 2011. Incorporated under the Ontario Business Corporations Act, 
Housing York is responsible for owning and operating affordable rental housing. A Board 
of Directors (Board) is responsible for the governance of Housing York. The Board sets 
strategic direction and receives and approves budget and business plan reports, mid-year 
forecasts and annual financial statements, as well as operational statistics and corporate 
performance reports. The Regional Municipality of York is the sole shareholder in Housing 
York. 
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Council, Board and leadership 
With the support and contributions of York Regional Council, a Board of 
Directors and Housing York leadership and staff, we work to build strong, 
healthy and affordable housing communities. 

York Regional Council 
York Regional Council owns Housing York and defines its governance framework. 

Housing York Board of Directors 
York Regional Council appoints 10 Board members. Housing York’s Board of Directors sets operational 
policies and oversees management of the corporation. 

Housing York Leadership 
Housing York is part of The Regional Municipality of York’s Community and Health Services department. 
Through a Management Agreement, Housing York provides executive and support staff to manage the 
day-to-day operations of the corporation. 
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A message from the Housing York Chief Executive Officer  
and Chair 
 
 
Quality and affordable housing is the foundation of vibrant and healthy communities.  As housing prices 
escalate, York Region is working with various partners to provide more housing options for all residents, 
despite income levels. In fact, the Regional Official Plan requires that 25 per cent of all new housing units 
across the Region be designated affordable and 35 per cent of new housing units in Regional centres and 
key development areas be designated affordable. 

Housing York is the Region’s non-profit housing corporation. It provides affordable housing to more 
than 4,000 York Region residents, but clearly more needs to be done. That’s why every year, Housing 
York increases the number of housing units available to individuals and families, and offers additional 
programs and services to better support new and existing tenants.

In 2015, Housing York made significant progress, including:

•  The opening of Belinda’s Place, York Region’s first emergency housing facility for women who are 
homeless or at risk of becoming homeless

•  An investment of $3.4 million to make repairs and capital improvements to Regional buildings such 
as the installation of new kitchens, furnaces and accessibility upgrades

• The introduction of new programs and services to support youth and seniors

As we move into the final year of Housing York Inc.’s 2012-2016 Strategy Plan, York Regional Council and 
our dedicated staff will continue to make affordable housing a priority. We will manage our properties and 
finances proactively and develop opportunities to engage even more tenants. At the same time, we will 
encourage our senior funding partners at the federal and provincial governments to commit long-term 
capital to create more affordable housing options in York Region and develop a national housing strategy 
that will benefit Canadians here and across the country.

 

 

Wayne Emmerson 
CEO, Housing York Inc. 

Jack Heath 
Chair, Housing York Inc. 



  

 

Executive summary 
The background: Our Region is growing 

•	 The Regional Municipality of York is the third 
largest municipality in Ontario and Canada’s 
fastest-growing large municipality 

•	 The current population of more than 1.1 
million is expected to reach 1.8 million by 2041 

•	 The senior population is expected to grow from 
11 per cent to 21 per cent by 2021 

•	 In Canada, York Region has the third largest 
proportion of immigrants, after Peel and 
Toronto 

The need: Home ownership and home 

affordability is becoming more challenging
 

•	 The average re-sale price for a single detached 
home in 2015 was over $943,0001 

•	 Only 12 per cent of York Region’s housing is 
rental, compared to 30 per cent nationally 

•	 The average monthly market rent of a two-
bedroom apartment is $1,2622 

•	 Over 12,000 households are waiting for social 
housing in York Region 

Cited sources on page 34. 

The services: Housing York is helping to fill the 
gap between need for accommodation and 
affordability 

•	 Housing York owns and manages 36 properties 
and 2,441 units spread across York Region’s 
nine towns and cities 

•	 We are adding 612 new units over the next five 
years 

The goal: A place to call home at every age and 
stage 

•	 We strive to ensure all York Region residents 
have access to a safe, secure and welcoming 
place to call home 

Overview of Housing York
 
7th largest social housing  
provider in Ontario 
Key partner for other social 
housing providers in York 
Region 
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2,441 
units in 37 properties across all nine 
towns and cities in York Region 

1,808 

Total property value of $529M 
Annual budget of $29M 
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Bricks and mortar build houses. It’s the 
people and connections within families and 
communities that create a sense of home 
and belonging. That’s the environment we 
strive to build for the 4,000 people who call 
Housing York home. 

Healthy communities 
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With all our programs and services, 
our ultimate goal is to create strong 
communities where our residents can live 
meaningful, productive lives.  In 2015, we 
enjoyed continued success with many 
existing programs and introduced several 
new initiatives. Here are some of the 
highlights for 2015. 

Supporting our senior tenants  

Seniors make up the majority of our tenants. To help 
ensure that they remain engaged and involved in 
their community, we developed a program targeted 
for seniors at risk of social isolation. Working with 
such partners as Seeds for Change and York Region 
Public Health, we supported the delivery of various 
social programs at several of our properties. The 
feedback has been overwhelmingly positive. 

4,000
people call 
Housing York 
home 

70 
per cent are 
seniors or single 
adults 

26 
partners helped Working with our Community Partnerships team, we 

also facilitated sessions with our seniors tenants to our tenants last 
assist them in developing and implementing their 

own events. Our seniors have hosted a range of year
 
activities including coffee chats, music programs, 

laughter yoga and potlucks.
 

“Thank you for all what you did for us! I live in Mapleglen Residences and 
I want to express my appreciation for a very nice lady, always smiling and 
caring – the property manager and her team. We are a happy family here 
and you should be proud and happy to do such work to take care of the 
seniors.” 

Tenant, Mapleglen Residences 
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Making transit easier Clean Air at Home event 

Adding more transit options for seniors 

Many of the seniors who live in our buildings rely 
on public transit. In response to tenants’ requests 
for more transit options in the City of Vaughan, 
we worked towards developing a “front door” bus 
service working with York Region Transit and the 
City. Small enhancements like this service go a 
long way in simplifying and improving the lives of 
our tenants. 

Helping our tenants breathe a little easier 

In partnership with York Region Public Health, 
we created and delivered a “Clean Air at Home” 
campaign. Supported by free cleaning tool kits, 
promotional materials, prizes and a kick-off 
barbecue event, the program encourages tenants 
to complete five simple steps to improve the air 
quality in their homes. 

Five simple steps to improve air quality in your home 

1. Turn on a fan or open a window when you shower 
2. Clean the floor with a damp mop or cloth 
3. Turn on a fan or open a window when you fry, sauté or grill food 
4. Use non-toxic cleaning products more often 
5. Make your home smoke-free 
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Helping our tenants access services and programs 

Housing York connects tenants with community programs and services through our many partnerships. 
Parenting information, recreation subsidies, nutrition and senior safety campaigns are just a few examples 
of the broad range of services we, with the help of our partners below, provide tenants access to. 

Canadian Hearing Society
 

Canadian Mental Health 

Association
 

Care First
 

Circle of Friends
 

Community Care Access Centre
 

Community & Home Assistance to 

Seniors (CHATS)
 

Community Health Assessment 

Program - Emergency Medical 

Services
 

Community Living
 

Delmanor Elgin Mills
 

Girls Inc. 


Housing Help Centre
 

Housing Services Corporation
 

LOFT Community Services
 

March of Dimes 

Ontario Power Authority (Save on 
Energy) Home Assistance Program 

Seeds for Change 

The Salvation Army 

Victorian Order of Nurses 

York Region Family and Child 
Services 

York Region Food Network 

York Region Healthy Aging Working 
Group 

York Regional Police 

York Region Public Health 

York Region Paramedic Services 

York Support Services Network 

360° kids 
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Through continual care and sound 
investment, we work to ensure that our 
building infrastructure can meet the current 
and growing demand for high-quality, 
affordable housing.  

Effective property management 
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Maximizing the life expectancy of our buildings 

The average age of Housing York’s buildings is 28 years. 
Even with rising maintenance and repair costs, last year 
we completed more than 80 capital projects valued at 
over $3 million including: 

•	 62 bathroom renovations at Brayfield Manors 
•	 75 kitchen renovations at Springbrook Gardens, 

Mulock Village and Rose Town 
•	 65 garage door replacements at Springbrook Gardens 

and Mulock Village 

We also completed numerous other upgrades and 
enhancements. By keeping our assets in a state of good 
repair and increasing their safety and accessibility, we are 
maximizing the value and life span of all the buildings in 
our portfolio. 

Completing close to 6,000 repair and maintenance 
requests 

In 2015, we completed close to 6,000 requests ranging 
from tasks as simple as clearing plugged drains to more 
complex repairs. Not only vital to ensure the continued 
health and good standing of our buildings, these 
maintenance requests offer a great opportunity for our 
employees to engage with and educate our tenants on 
simple home maintenance techniques. 

6,000
maintenance 
and repairs 
completed 

Over 

$3M 
spent on 
capital 
projects 

$60,000

in energy 
savings 
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Spotlight on select 
upgrades and 

enhancements to our 
buildings 

•	 Automatic door openers in the 
common areas at Blue Willow 
terrace 

•	 Better lighting in the hallways 
at Keswick Gardens 

•	 New furniture in the lounge at 
Dunlop pines 

•	 New siding at Glenwood Mews 

•	 Sidewalk upgrades at Rose 
town 

•	 Furnace replacements at 
thornhill Green 

•	 $20,375 spent in elevator 
upgrades and maintenance 
across all Housing York 
buildings 

•	 $126,197 spent to upgrade 
smoke and CO2 detectors 
across all Housing York 
buildings 

Conserving energy at our buildings 

The focus of our work isn’t just centered on 
how our buildings look but also how well they 
run. In support of this, we introduced an energy 
conservation program at several sites identified 
with high electricity usage. Working with the  
non-profit organization Housing Services 
Corporation, the program consisted of site-specific 
plans to support energy conservation. By tracking 
data before and after the introduction of the 
program, we will be able to demonstrate real energy 
savings to our tenants, motivating them to be more 
energy conscious. 

Saving money through the Green Saver 
program 

Through the Green Saver program, we replaced 
many appliances including dehumidifiers, 
refrigerators, freezers and air conditioners with 
more energy-efficient models, resulting in an 
annual savings of $60,000 in energy consumption. 
We also replaced close to 6,000 light bulbs with 
more energy-efficient ones, adding to our energy 
savings. 
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Our tenants speak out about maintenance staff 

“Brilliant people work here. Thank you so much. They are always perfect.”  


“Exceptionally speedy response, as usual, very satisfied.” 


“Best Super ever.” 


“The request was received at 8:45 a.m. – the problem resolved by 9:30 a.m.” 


“A wonderful person – did a fantastic job.” 


A few members of Housing York staff 



  

Always looking towards the future, Housing 
York completed several large capital projects 
to increase the amount of affordable housing 
available in York Region. 

Planning for growth 
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Opening Belinda’s Place: York Region’s first 
home for homeless women 

In December 2015, Belinda’s Place, in 
Newmarket, welcomed its first tenant. With 28 
emergency beds and nine transitional units, 
Belinda’s Place offers 37 single, homeless 
women a safe and supportive environment 
where they can begin the process of building 
a brighter future.  Operated by The Salvation 
Army, Belinda’s Place also offers drop-in 
services, counselling and mental health services 
and is home to more than 30 agency partners 
that provide a range of services to support 
Belinda Place’s clients. 

37 
homeless 
women helped at 
Belinda's Place 

Belinda's Place 

“Because of transition housing at Belinda’s Place, I can breathe and focus on who I am and 
where I want to be. I’m working toward a profession in mental health as a peer support 
worker. This is the first time in a long time I’ve felt valued and have a sense of purpose.  
This time the brick wall didn’t win. I can’t tell you how huge that is.” 

Sheila, Belinda’s Place 
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Completing construction at the Richmond 
Hill Hub 

Construction of the Richmond Hill Hub is ahead 
of schedule and will be available for occupancy 
in late January 2016. A nine-story building with 
202 one and two-bedroom rental apartments, 
offered at a mix of subsidized and market rents, 
444 people will call Richmond Hill Hub home. 
Featuring a community hub, roof-top patio and 
garden and commercial space, the Richmond 
Hill Hub has been designed to be self-sustaining 
without the need for government subsidies. 

With easy access to highways and many schools 
and parks nearby, the Richmond Hill Hub is 
a welcome addition to the community. The 
building will also feature a drop-in centre and 
emergency transitional housing for young 
people, operated by the non-profit agency 360° 
kids. 

Awarding the design/build contract for the 
Woodbridge Redevelopment project 

In 2015, we awarded the contract for the 
design and construction of the Woodbridge 
Redevelopment project. We are excited to 
work with our development partner VanMar 
Constructors Inc. to redevelop the three current 
properties on Woodbridge Avenue in Vaughan. 
Construction is expected to begin in early 2017. 
Once complete, the Woodbridge Redevelopment 
project will increase affordable housing in the 
area from 46 to 150 units. 

Housing York staff met frequently with tenants 
who will be re-housed during construction to 
keep them informed and updated on the project 
plans. We will continue to regularly connect 
with these tenants throughout the construction 
to minimize disruption and ensure a smooth 
transition.  

Richmond Hill Hub 

Laying the foundation for a new 
development in Unionville 

The new development in Unionville will feature 
approximately 250 apartments, targeted to 
seniors. This project is in the early planning 
phase with ground breaking anticipated in 
2017. The existing tenants located near the site, 
in Unionville Home Society’s Heritage Village, 
will remain in their homes throughout the 
construction of the new Housing York building 
and have been offered units in the new building. 

612 
new units to be 
added in 
Richmond Hill, 
Unionville, 
and Woodbridge
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PROPOSED MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT | TORONTO, ONTARIO

259 -275  WOODBR IDGE  AVENUEAPRIL 20, 2016

Proposed Woodbridge Redevelopment 



  

Our tenants reflect a wide range of ages, 
cultures and backgrounds. While the diversity 
of their needs may be great, so too is the 
need for our tenant programs and services to 
help them thrive. 

User-friendly services 
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Engaging our tenants through a variety of programs 

We know that the more engaged our tenants are within their building and community, the more positive 
the outcomes. In 2015, we continued to increase the number of programs and activities to enable our 
tenants to get to know their neighbours.  

The range and creativity of the programs enjoyed by tenants was impressive including a MasterChef 
cooking competition, coffee clubs, potluck dinners, musical entertainment, barbecues, outdoor movie 
nights and a host of other activities and events. Collectively, these social activities enable our tenants to 
learn new skills and socialize with people with common interests. 

Many 13-25 70 
year olds special activities meetings with  
participated in Life and programs  tenants 
in My Communityenjoyed by 
contest tenants 

Music concert MasterChef winner 
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Tapping into young people’s creativity 

We are very proud of the success of the Life in My Community photo contest for young people aged 13 to 
25. The young people who participated submitted an impressive range of creative and compelling photos, 
offering their interpretation of life in their communities. Photos and participants were publicly recognized 
and awarded with prizes at an exhibit at the Richmond Hill Centre for the Performing Arts. 

Honouring the participants 

A few of the winning photos 
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“My neighbourhood is fun. It is my 
place to go when I want to have fun 
and to be around the people I love 
and care about.” 

Youth, Mulock Village 

Maximizing the safety and security of our 
buildings 

In 2015, Housing York completed a 
comprehensive security review of all of our 
properties and developed a five-year upgrade 
plan to ensure that our buildings reflect the 
highest levels of safety and security. Moving 
forward and in partnership with York Regional 
Police, we will continue to support, upgrade 
and enhance property signage, standards and 
protocols.   

"What community means to me is 
seeing children play and learn. Seeing 
kids happy and playful means that our 
future as a community is brighter.” 

Youth, Bray Circle   

Listening to our tenants 

The Tenant Reference Group, consisting of 
up to 15 members, is an invaluable resource 
for us to learn about the issues, concerns and 
interests of our tenants and to get their input 
and feedback on programs. Throughout 2015, 
we continued to meet with them regularly to 
share information and ensure a productive two-
way flow of communication. We also held more 
than 70 tenant meetings throughout the year to 
share information and gather feedback from our 
tenants. 
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We strive to ensure that our organization 
is efficient, effective and responsive so we 
can deliver the programs and services that 
matter most to our tenants.      

Well-run organization 
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Investing in technology 

In 2015, we undertook a thorough review of our information technology systems to ensure we are 
optimizing our investment in technology. This work will continue throughout 2016 culminating in a major 
upgrade to our information technology systems, giving us the right and most current technical tools to 
support our business and operational objectives. 

Ensuring the right staffing model and training programs to help our employees excel 

The employees who work for Housing York are key to our success. We strive to ensure that we have 
the right staffing model and supports in place to help them succeed and excel at their jobs. In 2015, 
considerable effort was placed on staff training to ensure that our staff have the skills to effectively deliver 
the programs and services that make a positive difference in our tenants’ lives. 

Staff received training in: 
Customer service and communication Personal safety and security 
Fire and life safety Leadership development opportunities 

Profile of Angela Lippensky, 
Property Manager 
Angela Lippensky is one of five property managers with 
Housing York. Angela oversees nine properties and 543 
units including the recently opened Belinda’s Place.  Angela 
and her dedicated staff work together to ensure that the 
buildings under their responsibility run smoothly. 

As Angela says, no day is typical for her. Between her regular 
building visits, ensuring that repair or maintenance requests 
are completed, directing staff and meeting with tenants, 
she fields numerous calls and emails. The favourite part of 
Angela’s job is interacting with people.  

“It’s the human part that excites me most. I’ve been with Housing York since 2009 and have 
developed positive relationships with many of our tenants. Whether it’s a single mother with 
five kids or a seniors couple who are having some health issues, because we see our tenants on 
a regular basis, we are able to help them access the right support and services. This is the most 
satisfying part of my job: knowing that my team and I are making a difference in people’s lives.” 

Angela Lippensky, seated on the 
far left, with tenants and staff. 
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Guiding our growth: planning for the next four years 

In 2015, we focused our efforts on completing the balance of the goals in the Housing York 2012-2016 

Strategic Plan. As a result, we are well-positioned to complete all deliverables by the end of 2016. 


In 2015, we also began planning our corporation’s goals and objectives for the next four years, 2017 to 
2021. Through consultations with our Board of Directors and various other stakeholders, we are laying the 
early foundation for the development of the Housing York 2017-2021 Plan. 
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All our financial decisions are guided by one 
overriding principle – to ensure that we are in 
solid financial shape to meet the current and 
future needs of our residents.  

Financially-secure business 
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Strengthening our financial reporting 
In 2015, we implemented a new financial forecasting model. 
Undertaken by our operations and finance staff every quarter, 
these forecast reports provide a more detailed and current 
picture of the corporation’s revenue and expenditures. These 
financial forecasts also support and simplify the annual 
budgeting process and enhance decision-making.   

Simplifying the rent subsidy model 
In 2015, we developed and introduced a new rent subsidy 
model for the Richmond Hill Hub. By establishing standard 
rental rates for the entire year based on income range, this 
model simplifies the administration of rents. 

The benefits are significant: serving more people on the 
waiting list for subsidized housing and reducing the need 
for government subsidies as rental revenues are more 
predictable. Based on the success of this program, we are 
planning to roll out this subsidy model to new buildings 
throughout the region. 

“The new financial forecasting 
model gives the operations 
team more influence on how 
key performance indicators are 
monitored, directly impacting 
how we deliver strategic 
objectives. Direct involvement in 
the quarterly forecasting process 
also means that we are well-
informed and able to make timely 
decisions, ensuring effective 
management of resources while 
maintaining a commitment to 
healthy communities.”   

Randall Profitt 
Manager, Operations 

Housing York South Portfolio 

2014 to 2018 Retained Earnings
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Balance Sheet 
Assets 2015 2014 
Current Assets 7,554,461 6,592,806 
Restricted Cash and Investments 8,025,880 7,206,178 
property Holdings  144,017,726 150,232,624 
 $159,598,067 $164,031,608 

Liabilities and Equity 
Current Liabilities 11,328,401 33,959,246
 

Mortgages and Loans payable 68,231,455 50,355,495
 

Equity 
Reserve Fund for Capital equipment Replacement 4,762,354 4,952,608 
Other Reserves 72,092,420 71,711,423 
Retained earnings 3,183,437 3,052,836 

80,038,211 79,716,867 

$159,598,067  $164,031,608 

  

2015 Financial highlights 
Through prudent financial management focused on maintaining solid rental revenue performance 
and expenditure optimization, we achieved a $534,601 surplus in 2015 fostering the company’s strong 
financial health. 
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Revenue 

2015 
Actual 

2014 
Actual 

Rents and Other Operating Income
Operating Subsidy

 21,013,112 
 8,557,220 

20,173,587 
8,633,987 

Expenditures 

$29,570,332  $28,807,574 

Mortgage payments 
Administration and Maintenance
property taxes
Utilities
Capital
Insurance
Shelter
Bad Debts

9,140,458 
 9,969,447 
 3,004,072 
 3,112,389 
 1,126,851 

 466,149 
 128,640 

 47,773 

9,437,377 
9,466,070 
2,820,420 
2,864,464 
1,304,261 

443,408 
105,120 

52,950 

excess of Revenue over expenditures Before the Undernoted 

Contribution to Capital Reserve
Contribution to Operations Reserve
excess of Revenue over expenditures

Retained earnings, beginning of year
Internal Allocations:
     Contribution from Insurance Reserve 
     emergency power plan - additional contribution 
Retained earnings, end of year

$26,995,779 

  2,574,553 

 1,991,252 
 23,700 

 559,601 

 3,052,836 
 

(25,000) 
(404,000) 

 $3,183,437 

$26,494,070 

  2,313,504 

1,782,441 
23,700 

507,363 

2,595,622 
  

(50,149) 

$3,052,836 

 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Retained Earnings 

HOUSING YORK INC. ANNUAL RepORt         31 



2015 Revenue Mix
Market Rent 11,434

RGI Rent 9,579

Subsidy 8,557

Total Revenue 29,570

Market Rent

RGI Rent

Subsidy

8,557
29% 11,434

39%

9,579
32%

Total Operating Revenue 29,570
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Mortgage Payments

Maintenance, Administration 
and Bad Debts

Property Taxes

Utilities

Contribution to Housing York 
Reserves

Public Housing Capital

2015 Operating Expenses $000s
Expenditures: 2015
Mortgage Payments 9,140 
Maintenance, Administration and Bad Debts 10,612 
Property Taxes 3,004
Utilities 3,112
Contribution to Housing York Reserves 2,014 
Public Housing Capital 1,126

Total Operating Expenses 29,010

9,140
31%

10,612
37%

3,004
10%

3,112
11%

2,015
7%

1,127
4%

Total Operating Expenses 29,010
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Looking ahead to 2016 

A year of completion 

as we realize all the goals in the  


Housing York 2012-2016 Strategic Plan.
 

A year of transition  

as we build the foundations for the  


Housing York 2017-2021 Plan.
 

We are optimistic about the future and confident in our 

ability to meet the housing needs of  


York Region’s residents.
 

Sources: 

1 Toronto Real Estate Board, Market Watch, 2015 
2 Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation, Rental Market Report, Fall 
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16-3116

1091 Gorham Street, Unit 104, Newmarket, Ontario L3Y 8X7
 

Access York 
phone: 1-877-464-9675

ttY: 1-866-512-6228 or 905-895-4293  
(for deaf and harf of hearing)

Accessible formats or communication 
supports are available upon request


	The Regional Municipality of York
	Portfolio
	No. of Buildings
	Construction
	No. of Units
	Unit Mix
	Subsidy Eligibility
	Public Housing
	17
	1967 – 1979
	872
	Subsidy  100%
	Operating, which includes Capital
	Provincial Reform
	12
	1986 – 1994
	1,038
	Subsidy    71%
	Market    29%
	Mortgage, Taxes, RGI Subsidy and Mandatory Contribution to Capital Reserve
	Regional Housing
	7
	2004 – 2014
	531
	Subsidy    62%
	Market    38%
	Construction capital contribution 
	No operating subsidy Rent assistance 
	Total
	36
	2,441
	Subsidy   80%
	Market    20%
	Revenue Summary
	2015 Budget ($)
	2015 Actual ($)
	$ Var.
	F/(U)
	% Var.
	F/(U)
	Rental & Other Income
	20,108,794
	20,656,902
	548,108 
	2.7%
	Government Subsidies
	10,373,323
	8,913,430
	(1,459,893)
	(14.1)%
	Total Revenues
	$30,482,117
	$29,570,332
	$(911,785)
	(3.0)%
	Expenditure Summary
	2015 Budget ($)
	2015   Actual ($)
	$ Var.    F/(U)
	% Var. F/(U)
	Mortgage/Lease Payments
	9,453,596 
	9,140,458 
	313,138
	   3.3%
	Administration and Maintenance
	10,206,214
	9,969,447
	236,767
	2.3%
	Utilities
	3,523,465
	3,112,389
	411,076
	11.7%
	Property Taxes
	2,749,659
	3,004,072
	(254,413)
	(9.3)%
	Public Housing Capital
	1,403,506
	1,126,851
	276,655
	19.7%
	Insurance
	497,250 
	466,149
	31,101
	6.3%
	Shelter Costs
	108,137
	128,640
	(20,503)
	(19.0)%
	Bad Debts
	97,748
	47,773
	49,975
	51.1%
	Total Expenditures
	$28,039,575
	$26,995,779
	$1,043,796
	3.7%

	Balance Sheet – Assets Categories
	2015 
	2014
	Current Assets
	7,554,461
	6,592,806
	Restricted Cash and Investments
	8,025,880
	7,206,178
	Property Holdings
	144,017,726
	150,232,624
	Total Assets
	$159,598,067
	$164,031,608

	Balance Sheet – Short and Long Term Liabilities
	2015
	2014
	Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
	2,739,130
	2,176,168
	Deferred Revenue
	1,028,628
	988,890
	Amounts Due to York Region
	2,559,617
	1,702,304
	Current Portion of Mortgage Payable
	5,001,026
	29,091884
	Current Liabilities
	$11,328,401
	$33,959,246
	Loan Agreements
	5,834,000
	5,834,000
	Mortgages Payable 
	62,397,455
	44,521,495
	Building Financing
	$68,231,455
	$50,355,495
	Total Liabilities
	$79,559,856
	$84,314,741

	Balance Sheet Equity
	2015
	2014
	Reserve Fund for Capital Equipment Replacement
	4,762,354
	4,952,608
	Reserve for Operating Contingency
	47,400
	23,700
	Reserve Fund for Emergency Power Project
	598,090
	276,117
	Reserve Fund for Insurance Deductibles
	185,324
	180,000
	Reserve Fund for Shelter Furniture Replacement
	30,000
	-
	Shareholder Contribution
	71,231,606
	71,231,606
	Retained Earnings
	3,183,437
	3,052,836
	Total Equity
	$80,038,211
	$79,716,867
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	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	Year ended December 31, 2015 
	INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
	INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
	To the Board of Directors of Housing York Inc. 
	We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Housing York Inc., which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2015, the statements of revenue, expenditures and retained earnings and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with the financial reporting provisions of Section 80(2) of the Housing Services Act, 2011 and guidanc
	Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
	Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the financial reporting provisions of Section 80(2) of the Housing Services Act, 2011 and guidance in its application issued by the Housing and Long Term Care Branch of the Regional Municipality of York, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
	Auditors' Responsibility 
	Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
	An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
	We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
	Page2 
	Opinion 
	In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Housing York Inc. as at December 31 , 2015, and its results of operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting provisions of Section 80(2) of the Housing Services Act, 2011 and guidance in its application issued by the Housing and Long Term Care Branch of the Regional Municipality of York. 
	Basis ofAccounting 
	Without modifying our op1n1on, we draw attention to note 1 to the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial statements are prepared to assist Housing York Inc. to meet the requirements of the Housing and Long Term Care Branch of the Regional Municipality of York. As a result, the financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose. 
	Restriction on Use 
	Our report is intended solely for Housing York Inc. and Housing and Long Term Care Branch of the Regional Municipality of York and should not be used by parties other than Housing York Inc. or the Housing and Long Term Care Branch of the Regional Municipality of York. 
	DRAFT 
	DRAFT 
	Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 
	Toronto, Canada 


	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	DRAFTBalance Sheet December 31 , 2015, with comparative figures for 2014 
	2015 2014 
	Assets 
	Assets 
	Assets 

	Current assets: Cash Accounts receivable: Rents Harmonized sales tax Other · Pre~aid ex~enses 
	Current assets: Cash Accounts receivable: Rents Harmonized sales tax Other · Pre~aid ex~enses 
	$ 6,639,587 266,839 161 ,700 83,058 403,277 7,554,461 
	$ 
	5,671,563 289,475 81,273 95,246 455,249 6,592,806 

	Restricted cash and investments: Rental deposits Reserve fund deposits Emergency Power Plan Reserve Insurance Reserve Operations Reserve Shelter Furniture Replacement Reserve Reserve fund investments (note 5) O~erati ng fund investments {note 5} 
	Restricted cash and investments: Rental deposits Reserve fund deposits Emergency Power Plan Reserve Insurance Reserve Operations Reserve Shelter Furniture Replacement Reserve Reserve fund investments (note 5) O~erati ng fund investments {note 5} 
	635,923 1,942,771 598,090 185,324 47,400 30,000 3,081,583 1,504,789 8,025,880 
	629,002 1,033,603 276,117 180,000 23,700 3,026,717 2,037,039 7,206,178 

	Property holdings (note 2) 
	Property holdings (note 2) 
	143,782,094 
	149,996,991 

	Furniture and fixtures 
	Furniture and fixtures 
	235,632 
	235,633 


	$ 159,598,067 $ 164,031 ,608 
	$ 159,598,067 $ 164,031 ,608 
	2015 2014 

	Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity 
	Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity 
	Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity 

	Current liabilities: 
	Current liabilities: 

	Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Deferred revenue Amounts due to Regional Municipality of York, without interest or terms of repayment Current eortion of mortgages ea:rable (note 3} 
	Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Deferred revenue Amounts due to Regional Municipality of York, without interest or terms of repayment Current eortion of mortgages ea:rable (note 3} 
	$ 
	2,739,130 1,028,628 2,559,617 5,001,026 11,328,401 
	$ 
	2,176,168 988,890 1,702,304 29,0911884 33,959,246 

	Building financing: Loan agreements (note 3) Mortgages ea:rable (note 3} 
	Building financing: Loan agreements (note 3) Mortgages ea:rable (note 3} 
	5,834,000 62,397,455 68,231 ,455 
	5,834,000 44,521,495 50,355,495 

	Shareholder's Equity (note 4): Reserve fund for Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve fund for Emergency Power Plan Project Reserve fund for Insurance Reserve Reserve for Operations Reserve Fund for Shelter Furniture Replacement Shareholder's equity Retained earnings 
	Shareholder's Equity (note 4): Reserve fund for Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve fund for Emergency Power Plan Project Reserve fund for Insurance Reserve Reserve for Operations Reserve Fund for Shelter Furniture Replacement Shareholder's equity Retained earnings 
	4,762,354 598,090 185,324 47,400 30,000 71 ,231 ,606 3,183,437 80,038,211 
	4,952,608 276,117 180,000 23,700 71 ,231 ,606 3,052,836 79,716,867 


	$ 159,598,067 $ 164,031 ,608 
	See accompanying notes to financial statements. On behalf of the Board: -------------Director 
	-------------Director 

	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	DRAFTStatement of Revenue, Expenditures and Retained Earnings Year ended December 31, 2015, with comparative figures for 2014 
	2015 2015 Budget Actual Actual 
	Revenue: 
	Revenue: 
	Revenue: 

	Rental 
	Rental 
	$ 
	19,255,996 
	$ 
	19,576,265 
	$ 
	18,899,997 

	Non-rental 
	Non-rental 
	600,516 
	902,246 
	786,376 

	Operating subsidies (note 6) Oeerating surelus 
	Operating subsidies (note 6) Oeerating surelus 
	10,295,130 330,475 
	8,557,220 534,601 
	8,663,987 457,214 

	TR
	30,482,117 
	29,570,332 
	28,807,574 

	Expenditures: 
	Expenditures: 

	Mortgage payments (note 3) Administration and maintenance 
	Mortgage payments (note 3) Administration and maintenance 
	9,453,596 10,206,214 
	9,140,458 9,969,447 
	9,437,377 9,466,070 

	Property taxes 
	Property taxes 
	2,749,659 
	3,004,072 
	2,820,420 

	Utilities 
	Utilities 
	3,523,465 
	3,112,389 
	2,864,464 

	Capital Insurance 
	Capital Insurance 
	1,403,506 497,250 
	1 '126,851 466,149 
	1,304,261 443,408 

	Shelter 
	Shelter 
	108,137 
	128,640 
	105,120 

	Bad debts 
	Bad debts 
	97,748 
	47,773 
	52,950 

	TR
	28,039,575 
	26,995,779 
	26,494,070 


	Excess of revenue over expenditures 
	Excess of revenue over expenditures 
	Excess of revenue over expenditures 

	before the undernoted 
	before the undernoted 
	2,442,542 
	2,574,553 
	2,313,504 

	Contribution to Capital Reserve (note 4) 
	Contribution to Capital Reserve (note 4) 
	2,102,367 
	1,991 ,252 
	1,782,441 

	Contribution to Operations Reserve (note 4) 
	Contribution to Operations Reserve (note 4) 
	9,700 
	23,700 
	23,700 


	Excess of revenue over expenditures 
	Excess of revenue over expenditures 
	Excess of revenue over expenditures 
	$ 
	330,475 
	559,601 
	507,363 

	Retained earnings, beginning of year 
	Retained earnings, beginning of year 
	3,052,836 
	2,595,622 

	Internal allocations: Contribution from Insurance Reserve (note 4) Emergency Power Plan -additional contribution (note 4) 
	Internal allocations: Contribution from Insurance Reserve (note 4) Emergency Power Plan -additional contribution (note 4) 
	(25,000) (404,000) 
	(50, 149) 


	Retained earnings, end of year $ 3,183,437 $ 3,052,836 
	See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	DRAFTStatement of Cash Flows Year ended December 31 , 2015, with comparative figures for 2014 
	2015 2014 
	Cash provided by (used in): 
	Cash provided by (used in): 
	Cash provided by (used in): 

	Operating activities: Excess of revenue over expenditures Amortization of income-producing properties which does not involve cash Cash contributions to/from reserves Change in non-cash operating working capital: Accounts receivable Prepaid expenses Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Deferred revenue Amounts due to/from Regional Munici12ali~ of York 
	Operating activities: Excess of revenue over expenditures Amortization of income-producing properties which does not involve cash Cash contributions to/from reserves Change in non-cash operating working capital: Accounts receivable Prepaid expenses Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Deferred revenue Amounts due to/from Regional Munici12ali~ of York 
	$ 
	559,601 6,214,898 (238,257) (45,603) 51,972 562,962 39,738 857,313 8,002,624 
	$ 
	507,363 4,501 ,130 101,206 520,763 (50,979) (218,355) 65,158 p,869,553) 3,556,733 

	Financing activities: Principal repayment 
	Financing activities: Principal repayment 
	(6,214,898) 
	(4,501,130) 

	Investing activities: Increase in restricted cash -rental deposits Increase in restricted cash -reserve fund deposits Decrease in restricted cash -reserve fund investments Decrease in restricted cash -Emergency Power Plan Reserve Decrease in restricted cash -Insurance Reserve fund Increase in restricted cash -Operations Reserve Decrease (increase) in restricted cash-Strategic Projects Decrease in restricted cash -Shelter Furniture Replacement Reserve Increase in oeerating fund investments 
	Investing activities: Increase in restricted cash -rental deposits Increase in restricted cash -reserve fund deposits Decrease in restricted cash -reserve fund investments Decrease in restricted cash -Emergency Power Plan Reserve Decrease in restricted cash -Insurance Reserve fund Increase in restricted cash -Operations Reserve Decrease (increase) in restricted cash-Strategic Projects Decrease in restricted cash -Shelter Furniture Replacement Reserve Increase in oeerating fund investments 
	(6,921) (909,168) (54,866) (321,973) (5,324) (23,700) (30,000) 532,250 {819,702} 
	(58,499) 89,886 (60,019) 41 ,746 (23,700) 10,217 32,869 32!500 


	Increase (decrease) in cash 968,024 (911,897) .Cash, beginning of year 5,671,563 6,583,460 .
	Cash, end of year 
	Cash, end of year 
	Cash, end of year 
	$ 
	6,639,587 
	$ 
	5,671 ,563 

	Supplemental cash flow information: 
	Supplemental cash flow information: 

	Property holdings donated 
	Property holdings donated 
	$ 
	$ 
	19,405,805 


	See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements Year ended December 31 , 2015 
	Housing York Inc. (the "Corporation") was incorporated in accordance with Section 182 of the Ontario 
	Business Corporations Act on January 1, 2003. The Regional Municipality of York (the "Region") is 
	the sole shareholder of the Corporation. 
	1. Significant accounting policies: 
	(a) Basis of presentation: 
	The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting policies that comply with Section 80(2) of the Housing Services Act, 2011 (the "Act") and guidance in its application issued by the Housing and Long Term Care Branch of the Region. Canadian generally accepted accounting principles ("Canadian GAAP") has been interpreted to mean Canadian public sector accounting standards and the 4200 standards for government not­for-profit organizations. 
	The basis of accounting used in these financial statements materially differs from Canadian GAAP because: 
	(i) Amortization: 
	Beginning in 2012, amortization is not provided on property holdings and furniture and fixtures over the estimated useful lives of these assets. This currently includes Tom Taylor Place, Leeder Place family shelter, Kingview Court Expansion, Mackenzie Green, and Lakeside Residences. 
	Amortization is not provided on Provincial Reform Program property holdings over the estimated useful lives of these assets but rather at a rate equal to the annual principal repayments on these mortgages. 
	(ii) Income-producing properties: 
	Income-producing properties that were transferred to the Public Housing Program on December 14, 2000 by the Province of Ontario are carried at a nominal value of $1 as the fair value of the properties was not readily available at the time of the transfer. 
	Income-producing properties that are reported for the Provincial Reform Program include land, buildings, equipment and other capitalized costs and are recorded at cost, net of any government grants or contributions. 
	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	DRAFTNotes to Financial Statements (continued) Year ended December 31 , 2015 
	1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 
	1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 
	As described in the Act, costs incurred by the Provincial Reform Program to modernize or improve existing income-producing properties, which have the effect of extending the useful life of the property or increasing its value, are funded from the Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve. The Public Housing Program has no Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve; therefore, these expenses are reflected as operating expenses. The Regional Housing Program is expected to be self-sustaining and funds its own Capital
	(iii) Other property holdings: 
	The Corporation owns the Blue Door Shelters site, a non-revenue-producing property location with multiple buildings that serve as emergency shelters. Porter Place, the men's shelter, receives subsidy under the Act and is, therefore, reported in the same manner as the Corporation's other Provincial Reform Program locations. 
	In 2009, the Corporation added a new family shelter building known as Leeder Place to the Blue Door Shelters site. The old Leeder Place family shelter has been closed and its disposition is under review. 
	During 2004, the Region implemented the Regional Housing Program which the Corporation manages on behalf of the shareholder. A long-term lease agreement was created for each leased property. The land, building and equipment for the leased sites are not reflected in the Corporation's book of accounts. 
	Table
	TR
	Addition 
	Ownership 

	Property 
	Property 
	year 
	type 

	Armitage Garden 
	Armitage Garden 
	2004 
	Leased 

	Blue Willow 
	Blue Willow 
	2006 
	Leased 

	Tom Taylor Place 
	Tom Taylor Place 
	2008 
	Owned 

	Kingview Court Expansion 
	Kingview Court Expansion 
	2011 
	Owned 

	Mapleglen Residences 
	Mapleglen Residences 
	2012 
	Leased 

	Mackenzie Green 
	Mackenzie Green 
	2013 
	Owned 

	Lakeside Residences 
	Lakeside Residences 
	2014 
	Owned 


	The sites owned by the Corporation are recorded on the books at transfer cost between the shareholder and the Corporation. 
	6 



	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	DRAFTNotes to Financial Statements (continued) Year ended December 31 , 2015 
	1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 
	(iv) 
	(iv) 
	(iv) 
	(iv) 
	Appropriations to/from Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve fund: 

	Appropriations to/from the Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve fund are reported on the statement of revenue. expenditures and retained earnings. Expenditures made from Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve fund are reported within this fund and not on the statement of revenue, expenditures and retained earnings. Interest income earned on investments of Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve fund is credited directly to the Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve fund and is not reported on the statement

	(v) 
	(v) 
	Financial instruments: 


	Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition. 
	Under Program Instruction 2008-02 issued by the Region. the Corporation subsequently records its investments at book value. Gains or losses associated with capital reserve investments are recognized at redemption. 
	Financial instruments are adjusted by transaction costs incurred on acquisition and financing costs. 
	All financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis. When a decline is determined to be other than temporary, the amount of the loss is reported in the statements of revenue. expenditures and retained earnings. 
	Long-term debt is recorded at cost. 
	(b) Other reserve funds: 
	The Corporation established reserve funds from retained earnings for expenditures 
	approved by the Board of Directors. These funds are specifically restricted for emergency 
	power plan and insurance deductible expenditures. These are discussed further in note 4. 

	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	DRAFTNotes to Financial Statements (continued) Year ended December 31 , 2015 
	1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 
	1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	Bad debts: 

	The funding formula does not recognize a provision for doubtful accounts. Therefore, bad debts are recognized as an expense in the year that write-off has occurred. The Corporation· applies a collection of tenant accounts policy, which indicates that former tenant arrears that meet certain criteria are eligible for write-off annually. 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	Operations: 

	As of December 31 , 2015, the portfolio consists of 37 multi-residential buildings and an emergency shelter site. While the Corporation owns the shelter site, daily operations are provided by Blue Door Shelter through an operating agreement. 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	Subsidy reconciliation-operating subsidies: 


	The Corporation is subsidized for certain occupancy costs relating to Provincial Reform Program and Public Housing Program properties administered by the Corporation. Any surplus funding received must be repaid in full to the Region. The Regional Housing Program is not eligible to receive operating subsidy. 
	The final subsidy amount to be received by the Corporation for the current fiscal year will not be determined until the Service Manager reviews the Corporation's financial and statistical returns. Corporation's management considers the subsidy receivable (payable) to include all appropriate adjustments for non-allowable costs. Any adjustments to the subsidy will be accounted for in the year it is determined. 
	(f) Furniture and fixtures: 
	Furniture and fixtures are recorded at cost. 

	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	DRAFTNotes to Financial Statements (continued) Year ended December 31, 2015 
	1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 
	(g) Use of estimates: 
	The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date o{ the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenditures during the year. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the carrying amount of property holdings. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
	2015 2014 
	Incoming-producing properties: 
	Incoming-producing properties: 
	Incoming-producing properties: 

	Land 
	Land 
	$ 
	25,232,345 
	$ 
	25,232,345 

	Buildings 
	Buildings 
	96,2321555 
	96,232!555 

	TR
	121 ,464, 900 
	121,464,900 

	Less accumulated amortization 
	Less accumulated amortization 
	54,066,419 
	47,851,522 


	Net book value $ 67,398 481 $ 73,613,378 
	Other properties: Land Buildings 
	Other properties: Land Buildings 
	Other properties: Land Buildings 
	$ 
	8,439,742 68,703,864 77,143,606 
	$ 
	8,439,742 68,703,864 77,143,606 

	Less accumulated amortization 
	Less accumulated amortization 
	759,993 
	759,993 


	Net book value $ 76,383,613 $ 76,383,613 
	2. Property holdings: 
	2015 2014 
	Total property holdings: Land Buildings 
	Total property holdings: Land Buildings 
	Total property holdings: Land Buildings 
	$ 
	33,672,087 164,936,419 198,608,506 
	$ 
	33,672,087 164,936,419 198,608,506 

	Less accumulated amortization 
	Less accumulated amortization 
	54,826,414 
	48,611,515 


	Net book value $ 143,782,094 $ 149,996,991 

	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	DRAFTNotes to Financial Statements (continued) Year ended December31 , 2015 
	3. Mortgages payable: 
	(a) Mortgages payable applicable to buildings in the Provincial Reform Program: 
	Property Particulars 
	Property Particulars 
	Property Particulars 
	2015 
	2014 

	Glenwood Mews Mortgage payable, bearing interest 
	Glenwood Mews Mortgage payable, bearing interest 

	at 1.120% per annum with blended 
	at 1.120% per annum with blended 

	monthly payments of $33,423, 
	monthly payments of $33,423, 

	maturing February 1, 2020 $ 
	maturing February 1, 2020 $ 
	3,402,224 
	$ 
	3,753,120 

	Keswick Gardens Mortgage payable, bearing interest 
	Keswick Gardens Mortgage payable, bearing interest 

	at 6.996% per annum with blended 
	at 6.996% per annum with blended 

	monthly payments of$70,011 , 
	monthly payments of$70,011 , 

	maturing January 1, 2025 
	maturing January 1, 2025 
	6,464,662 
	6,844,633 

	Springbrook Gardens Mortgage payable, bearing interest 
	Springbrook Gardens Mortgage payable, bearing interest 

	at 5.912% per annum with blended 
	at 5.912% per annum with blended 

	monthly payments of $87,877, 
	monthly payments of $87,877, 

	maturing January 1, 2024 
	maturing January 1, 2024 
	8,538,753 
	9,077,413 

	Mulock Village Mortgage payable, bearing interest 
	Mulock Village Mortgage payable, bearing interest 

	at 4.547% per annum with blended 
	at 4.547% per annum with blended 

	monthly payments of $80,593, 
	monthly payments of $80,593, 

	maturing March 1, 2017 
	maturing March 1, 2017 
	8,525,820 
	9,094,934 

	Heritage East Mortgage payable, bearing interest 
	Heritage East Mortgage payable, bearing interest 

	at 1.850% per annum with blended 
	at 1.850% per annum with blended 

	monthly payments of $73,639, 
	monthly payments of $73,639, 

	maturing October 1, 2020 
	maturing October 1, 2020 
	9,151,260 
	9,828,110 

	Hadley Grange Mortgage payable, bearing interest at 
	Hadley Grange Mortgage payable, bearing interest at 

	4.486% per annum with blended 
	4.486% per annum with blended 

	monthly payments of $43,297, 
	monthly payments of $43,297, 

	maturing February 1, 2018 
	maturing February 1, 2018 
	4,875,983 
	5,171,665 

	Brayfield Manor Mortgage payable, bearing interest 
	Brayfield Manor Mortgage payable, bearing interest 

	at 5.940% per annum with blended 
	at 5.940% per annum with blended 

	monthly payments of $70,757, 
	monthly payments of $70,757, 

	maturing July 1, 2028 
	maturing July 1, 2028 
	7,546,576 
	7,940,245 

	Oxford Village Mortgage payable, bearing interest 
	Oxford Village Mortgage payable, bearing interest 

	at 1.830% per annum with blended 
	at 1.830% per annum with blended 

	monthly payments of$14,781 , 
	monthly payments of$14,781 , 

	maturing June 1, 2025 
	maturing June 1, 2025 
	2,224,522 
	2,347,509 

	Rose Town Mortgage payable, bearing interest 
	Rose Town Mortgage payable, bearing interest 

	at 1.880% per annum with blended 
	at 1.880% per annum with blended 

	monthly payments of $39,771 , 
	monthly payments of $39,771 , 

	maturing December 1, 2022 
	maturing December 1, 2022 
	3,128,727 
	3,543,175 



	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	DRAFTNotes to Financial Statements (continued) Year ended December 31,2015 
	3. Mortgages payable (continued): 
	Property Particulars 
	Property Particulars 
	Property Particulars 
	2015 
	2014 

	Woodbridge Lane Mortgage payable, bearing interest 
	Woodbridge Lane Mortgage payable, bearing interest 

	at 4.742% per annum with blended 
	at 4.742% per annum with blended 

	monthly payments of $11,214, 
	monthly payments of $11,214, 

	maturing April 1, 2015 
	maturing April 1, 2015 
	1,463,301 

	Trinity Square Mortgage payable, bearing interest 
	Trinity Square Mortgage payable, bearing interest 

	at 2.315% per annum with blended 
	at 2.315% per annum with blended 

	monthly payments of $68.160, 
	monthly payments of $68.160, 

	maturing March 1, 2025 
	maturing March 1, 2025 
	8,098,982 
	8,701,330 

	Thornhill Green Mortgage payable, bearing interest 
	Thornhill Green Mortgage payable, bearing interest 

	at 2.112% per annum with blended 
	at 2.112% per annum with blended 

	monthly payments of $36,679, 
	monthly payments of $36,679, 

	maturity December 1, 2017 
	maturity December 1, 2017 
	4,721,341 
	5,058,365 

	Blue Door Shelter -Mortgage payable, bearing interest at 
	Blue Door Shelter -Mortgage payable, bearing interest at 

	Porter Place 4.443% per annum with blended 
	Porter Place 4.443% per annum with blended 

	monthly payments of $8,609, 
	monthly payments of $8,609, 

	maturing September 1, 2018 
	maturing September 1, 2018 
	719,631 
	789,579 

	Less current portion 
	Less current portion 
	67,398,481 5,001,026 
	73,613,379 29,091,884 


	$ 62,397,455 $ 44,521,495 
	Principal repayments are as follows: 
	2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter 
	$ 5,001,026 16,518,439 8,762,625 4,093,267 11,190,490 21 ,832,634 
	$ 67,398,481 
	(b) Tom Taylor Place: 
	Tom Taylor Place, a 50-unit facility in the Town of Newmarket, opened October 1, 2008. The building was constructed by the Region through the New Affordable Housing Program, which offers funding partnerships with the federal and provincial governments. The building is owned by the Corporation; however, the financial reporting does not fall under the Act like the other income-producing properties owned by the Corporation. 

	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	DRAFTNotes to Financial Statements (continued) Year ended December 31 , 2015 
	3. Mortgages payable (continued): 
	The Corporation purchased the land for this building in January 2006 for $315,000. 
	Financing for the building was structured in 2009, which includes Regional debentures and 
	other loan agreements which are described below: 
	Amounts payable to shareholder (i) Federal forgivable loan (ii) 
	Amounts payable to shareholder (i) Federal forgivable loan (ii) 
	Amounts payable to shareholder (i) Federal forgivable loan (ii) 
	$ 
	4,434,000 1,400,000 5,834,000 

	Shareholder contribution (iii) 
	Shareholder contribution (iii) 
	3,720,635 


	$ 9,554,635 
	(i) .The amount payable to the shareholder is made up of two components: 
	A long-term loan in the amount of $2,334,000 is repayable to the Region from rent 
	revenue generated at the building. The Region has debentured this amount on the 
	Corporation's behalf. Repayment terms are based on a 30-year amortization schedule. 
	The remaining amount payable to shareholder is $2,100,000 for a second debenture financed by the Region. Under the New Affordable Housing Program, the province flows funds to the Corporation which, in turn, forwards the funds to the Region to pay the debenture. These provincial contributions are forgivable advances subjected to similar terms and conditions applicable to federal forgivable loan as discussed below. The term of the Regional debenture is 20 years. 
	(ii) .The federal forgivable loan of $1,400,000 is provided through the Canada -Ontario New Affordable Housing Program agreement. This loan is to be fully forgiven on the last day of the month at the end of the term of the loan. The term of the loan is 20 years maturing in 2028 and the amounts are forgiven provided all terms and conditions of the agreement are satisfied by the Corporation. The loan is interest-bearing with the interest rate, being the higher of the average posted rate offered by major Canad

	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	DRAFTNotes to Financial Statements (continued) Year ended December 31 , 2015 
	3. Mortgages payable (continued): 
	(iii) The shareholder contribution .in the amount of $3,720,635 represents a gift from the Region to the Corporation to fully finance the cost of the Tom Taylor Place not covered by the Canada -Ontario New Affordable Housing Program. 
	(c) .Blue Door Shelters-Leeder Place: 
	The new Leeder Place family shelter, with a construction cost valued at $2,836,826, was 
	developed by the Region on existing lands owned the Corporation. It was gifted to the 
	Corporation without any financing obligations. 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	Kingview Court Expansion: 

	Kingview Court Expansion, a 39-unit facility in the Town of King, opened October 26, 2011. The building was constructed through the New Affordable Housing Program, which offers funding partnerships with the federal and provincial governments by the Region with a cost of $7,847,469, including $98,644 in furniture and fixtures. The building is owned by the Corporation and it was gifted without any financing obligations. The financial reporting does not fall under the Act like the other income-producing proper

	(e) 
	(e) 
	Mackenzie Green: 


	Mackenzie Green, a 140-unit facility in the Town of Richmond Hill, opened March 15, 2013. The building was constructed with funding provided through: Canada-Ontario Affordable Housing Program 2009 Extension $16,800,000; York Region Investing in Ontario Funding $11 ,011 ,000; Developing Opportunities for Ontario Renters Funding $2,409,000; and Social Housing Development Charges Reserve $1,350,871 . The building is owned by the Corporation and it was gifted with a $5,850,000 financial obligation serviced thro


	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	DRAFTNotes to Financial Statements (continued) Year ended December 31 , 2015 
	3. Mortgages payable (continued): 
	(f) Lakeside Residences: 
	Lakeside Residences, a 97-unit facility in the Town of Georgina, purchased on June 15, 2014. The building was constructed with funding provided through: Investment in Affordable Housing for Ontario Program $12,489,748; York Region Investing in Ontario Funding; $5,788,386; York Region Social Housing Development Reserve $1,178,795 and the Sundry Revenue account $17,393. The building is owned by the Corporation and it was gifted with no financial obligation. The financial reporting is similar to the other prop
	4. Reserve funds: 
	In addition to the Capital Reserve fund that has always been maintained by the Corporation, 
	the Board of Directors and the Region have approved additional reserves for specified 
	purposes. 
	(a) Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve fund: 
	In accordance with the Act, the use of the Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve fund is limited to the replacement. enhancement or repair of existing capital assets, or the purchase of new capital assets for the Provincial Reform Program. Funding for capital expenditures is obtained through the Region, through the subsidy payment process, and through an annual operating surplus sharing agreement. 
	Buildings in the Regional Housing Program contribute a significant portion of annual surplus operating funds to a Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve fund for future major repairs and replacements within this program. For presentation purposes, all capital reserve funds are reported on a consolidated basis. 
	The Corporation does not maintain a Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve fund account for the Public Housing Program. 
	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	DRAFTNotes to Financial Statements (continued) Year ended December 31, 2015 
	4. Reserve funds (continued): 
	The Corporation has a 1 0-year capital plan for managing expenses from capital reserves, which has been approved through a separate process. 
	2015 2014 
	Balance, beginning of year 
	Balance, beginning of year 
	Balance, beginning of year 
	$ 
	4,952,608 
	$ 
	4,772,990 

	Funding from Region Transfer in from operating Interest earned Caeital exeenditures Net activity 
	Funding from Region Transfer in from operating Interest earned Caeital exeenditures Net activity 
	329,085 1,662,167 68,772 {2,250,278} (190,254) 
	205,078 1,782,441 77,495 {1 ,885,396) 179,618 


	Balance, end of year $ 4,762,354 $ 4,952,608 
	(b) Emergency Power Plan: 
	Following the examination of the Corporation's emergency power capabilities in a long-term power outage, the Board of Directors approved the use of $910,500 from retained earnings to fund emergency power upgrades in several apartment buildings. The multi-year plan addresses operational and tenant safety issues. A major generator installation was scheduled for completion in 2014, which was later deferred to 2015 along with a second major generator installation. An additional $404,000 from retained earnings w
	2015 2014 
	Balance, beginning of year 
	Balance, beginning of year 
	Balance, beginning of year 
	$ 
	276,117 
	$ 
	317,863 

	Direct costs 
	Direct costs 
	(82,027) 
	(41 ,746) 

	Additional Contribution 
	Additional Contribution 
	404,000 


	Balance, end of :lear $ 598,090 $ 276,117 


	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	DRAFTNotes to Financial Statements (continued) Year ended December 31 , 2015 
	4. Reserve funds (continued): 
	(c) Insurance Reserve: 
	The Corporation maintains property insurance on all buildings through the Social Housing 
	Services Corporation. This is a pooled insurance program available for housing providers 
	in Ontario. 
	The Corporation takes all reasonable measures to mitigate insurance claims through aggressive risk management strategies. However, the unpredictable nature of insurance claims has the potential to create unforeseen impacts on operating expenses on a year-over-year basis as frequency and severity of incidents cannot be forecasted. 
	As an alternative to using operating funds on an as-required basis for insurance-related costs, the Board of Directors appmved the establishment of a reserve fund to facilitate a more predictable draw on operating expenses. The initial contribution to the reserve from retained earnings was $200,000 in 2006 with a budgeted annual contribution thereafter. 
	Based on reserve activity from prior years, the Board of Directors approved adjustments to the threshold balance of the reserve, as well as the annual contribution limit in 201 0. The reserve balance will continue to be monitored yearly for adequacy against claims costs. 
	Insurance costs related to deductibles on claims and small settlements will be paid from the Insurance Reserve fund. The combination of the insurance policy and the Insurance Reserve fund provides financial protection from catastrophic loss. 
	2015 2014 
	Balance, beginning of year 
	Balance, beginning of year 
	Balance, beginning of year 
	$ 
	180,000 
	$ 
	180,000 

	Contribution to reserve Discretionary contribution to reserve Claims eaid, net of recoveries Net activity 
	Contribution to reserve Discretionary contribution to reserve Claims eaid, net of recoveries Net activity 
	25,000 ~19,676} 5,324 
	25,000 25,149 ~501 149) 


	Balance, end of ;tear $ 185,324 $ 180,000 
	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	DRAFTNotes to Financial Statements (continued) Year ended December 31,2015 
	4. Reserve funds (continued): 
	4. Reserve funds (continued): 
	(d) Operating Contingency Reserve: 
	Management sets up a Contingency Fund for maintenance costs for two properties: Mackenzie Green and Lakeside Residences. 
	2015 2014 
	Balance, beginning of year $ 23,700 $ Contribution to reserve 23,700 23,700 
	Balance, end of year $ 47,400 $ 23,700 
	(e) Shareholder's equity: 
	Mackenzie Green was constructed by the Region and was gifted to the Corporation with a $5,850,000 financing obligation serviced through tenants rent. As amortization is not provided on Mackenzie Green, the contribution of Mackenzie Green is recognized as a direct increase in shareholder's equity in the amount of $37,420,871 in 2013. 
	Lakeside Residences was constructed by the Region and was gifted to the Corporation. As amortization is not provided on Lakeside Residences, the contribution of Lakeside Residences is recognized as a direct increase in the shareholder's equity in the amount of $19,405,805. 
	2015 2014 
	Balance, beginning of year $ 71 ,231,606 $ 51 ,825,801 .Contributions 19,405,805 .
	Balance, end of year $ 71 ,231,606 $ 71,231,606 


	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	DRAFTNotes to Financial Statements (continued) Year ended December 31 , 2015 
	5. Restricted investments: 
	During 2005, the Corporation adopted an Investment Strategy Policy, which includes the management of mandatory investment of the Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve fund, as well as the investment of surplus operating funds. The policy prescribes to a conservative investment approach that carries a low to moderate risk tolerance similar to investment strategies adopted by the Region. 
	(a) Reserve fund investments: 
	Under the requirements of the Act, housing providers are required to invest their Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve fund in an investment pool designed for housing providers. The Corporation has participated in this mandatory program since its inception and, from time to time, adjusts its investment mix to reflect its risk profile and to improve its overall returns. 
	Reserve fund investments are comprised of the following: 
	2015 2014 
	Security description: 
	Security description: 
	Security description: 

	Social Housing Canadian 
	Social Housing Canadian 

	Short Term Bond Fund 
	Short Term Bond Fund 
	$ 
	3,072,375 
	$ 
	3,017,979 

	Social Housing Canadian 
	Social Housing Canadian 

	Bond Fund 
	Bond Fund 
	3,394 
	3,232 

	Social Housing Canadian 
	Social Housing Canadian 

	Equity Fund 
	Equity Fund 
	5,814 
	5,506 


	Total reserve fund investments $ 3,081 ,583 $ 3,026,717 

	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	DRAFTNotes to Financial Statements (continued) Year ended December 31, 2015 
	5. Restricted investments (continued): 
	(b) Operating fund investments: 
	Surplus operating funds are invested to improve upon the return that would otherwise be made earning bank interest. Surplus operating funds would include restricted funds from retained earnings and short-term cash flow excesses not needed to support operations. Investments of this nature typically fall into a short-term investment horizon of three months to four years. Operating fund investments are comprised of the following : 
	Yield to 2015 Par value Maturity date maturity 
	Security description: 
	Security description: 
	Security description: 

	CIBC Bank Deposit Note 
	CIBC Bank Deposit Note 
	$ 
	1,000,000 
	January 14, 2016 
	2.302% 

	Province of Ontario Bond 
	Province of Ontario Bond 
	500,000 
	September 8, 2016 
	1.736% 

	Unamortized premiums (discounts) 
	Unamortized premiums (discounts) 
	4,789 


	Total oeeratin9 fund investments $ 1,504,789 
	2014 
	2014 
	2014 
	Par value 
	Maturity date 
	Yield to maturity 

	Security description: CIBC Bank Deposit Note Province of British Columbia Bond Province of Ontario Bond Unamortized premiums (discounts) 
	Security description: CIBC Bank Deposit Note Province of British Columbia Bond Province of Ontario Bond Unamortized premiums (discounts) 
	$ 
	1,000,000 500,000 500,000 37,039 
	January 14, 2016 December 18, 2015 September 8, 2016 
	2.302% 1.531% 1.736% 


	Total oeeratin9 fund investments $ 2,037,039 


	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	DRAFTNotes to Financial Statements (continued) Year ended December 31 , 2015 
	6. Related party transactions: 
	6. Related party transactions: 
	(a) During the year, the Corporation received net subsidies as summarized below: 
	2015 2014 
	Subsidies: 
	Subsidies: 
	Subsidies: 

	Provincial Reform Program 
	Provincial Reform Program 
	$ 
	6,565,280 
	$ 
	6,584,529 

	Public Housing Program 
	Public Housing Program 
	2,725,002 
	2,413,236 

	Blue Door Shelters 
	Blue Door Shelters 
	115,644 
	115,587 

	Other 
	Other 
	80,702 
	50,435 

	TR
	9,486,628 
	9,163,787 

	Less surplus subsidy payable to System 
	Less surplus subsidy payable to System 

	Service Manager 
	Service Manager 
	929,408 
	499,800 


	$ 8,557 220 $ 8,663,987 
	The Region provided contracted services of personnel, rental of office space and other 
	administrative costs. The cost of these services, aggregating $7,393,339 (2014 ­
	$5,888,218), was charged to administration and maintenance. 
	(b) Buildings in the Regional Housing Program are financed by the Region. The collection of tenants' rent is used to pay the financing costs and the Corporation issued payments to the Region to fund the debentures payable. The payments issued for Armitage Garden, Blue Willow Terrace, Tom Taylor Place, Mapleglen Residences and Mackenzie Green amounted to $1,532,316 (2014-$1,532,316). 

	7. Financial risks and concentration of credit risk: 
	7. Financial risks and concentration of credit risk: 
	(a) Credit risk: 
	Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty may default on its contractual obligations 
	resulting in a financial loss. The Corporation is exposed to credit risk with respect to the 
	accounts receivable and cash. 
	The Corporation assesses, on a continuous basis, accounts receivable and writes off any amounts that are not considered to be collectible during the year. The maximum exposure to credit risk of the Corporation at December 31 , 2015 is the carrying value of these assets. 
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	HOUSING YORK INC. 
	DRAFTNotes to Financial Statements (continued) Year ended December 31 , 2015 
	7. Financial risks and concentration of credit risk (continued): 
	(b) Liquidity risk: 
	Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will be unable to fulfill its obligations on a timely basis or at a reasonable cost. The Corporation manages its liquidity risk by monitoring its operating requirements. The Corporation prepares a budget to ensure it has sufficient funds to fulfill its obligations. 
	Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are generally due immediately within receipt of an invoice. 
	8. Subsequent events: 
	A new development, Belinda's Place Women Shelter, will be added to the Corporation's portfolio in the first quarter of 2016. This building in the Town of Newmarket will be owned by the Corporation but operated by a third party provider through an operating agreement. This building will feature 28 emergency beds and 9 transitional units. 
	The Richmond Hill Hub building will be added to the portfolio in the Town of Richmond Hill in 01 of 2016. This building will feature 202 mixed units and a youth shelter. 
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	A Message from the Housing York Chief Executive Officer and Chair 
	Housing is fundamental for developing strong communities. In a growing and diverse Region, housing continues to be less and less affordable for our low-to-moderate income residents.  Housing York, the Regional Municipality of York’s non-profit housing corporation, continues to provide much needed affordable housing to more than 4,000 York Region residents. Year after year, Housing York continues to grow with new units and new programs and services that better support our tenants.  
	In 2015, Housing York made significant progress in advancing the goals outlined in the Housing York Inc. 2012 – 2016 Strategic Plan.  
	Some highlights include: 
	•. 
	•. 
	•. 
	Opening Belinda’s Place – York Region’s first emergency housing facility for homeless women is owned by Housing York and operated by the Salvation Army;  Belinda’s Place has 28 emergency beds and nine transitional units providing much needs services to over 37 single women 

	•. 
	•. 
	Investing in our buildings – Last year, Housing York Inc., invested more than $3.4 million in our repairs and capital improvements such as new kitchens, furnace replacements and accessibility upgrades that ensure our buildings remain in top condition and provide a comfortable, safe home for our tenants 

	•. 
	•. 
	New programs and services – In 2015, we introduced a number of programs and services to help involve youth and seniors in the Housing York communities; various workshops, activities and events 


	As we move into the final year of the Housing York Inc.’s 2012-2016 Strategic Plan, we will continue to focus on building healthy communities, managing our properties and finances proactively and looking for more opportunities to engage our tenants. 
	Wayne Emmerson Jack Heath .CEO, Housing York Inc. Chair, Housing York Inc. .


	Executive summary 
	Executive summary 
	The background: Our Region is growing 
	The background: Our Region is growing 
	•. 
	•. 
	•. 
	The Regional Municipality of York is the third largest municipality in Ontario and Canada’s fastest-growing large municipality 

	•. 
	•. 
	The current population of more than 1.1 million is expected to reach 1.8 million by 2041 

	•. 
	•. 
	The senior population is expected to grow from 11 per cent to 21 per cent by 2021 

	•. 
	•. 
	In Canada, York Region has the third largest proportion of immigrants, after Peel and Toronto 


	The need: Home ownership and home .affordability is becoming more challenging. 
	•. 
	•. 
	•. 
	The average re-sale price for a single detached home in 2015 was over $943,0001 

	•. 
	•. 
	Only 12 per cent of York Region’s housing is rental, compared to 30 per cent nationally 

	•. 
	•. 
	The average monthly market rent of a two-bedroom apartment is $1,2622 

	•. 
	•. 
	Over 12,000 households are waiting for social housing in York Region 


	Cited sources on page 34. 
	The services: Housing York is helping to fill the gap between need for accommodation and affordability 
	•. 
	•. 
	•. 
	Housing York owns and manages 36 properties and 2,441 units spread across York Region’s nine towns and cities 

	•. 
	•. 
	We are adding 612 new units over the next five years 


	The goal: A place to call home at every age and stage 
	•. We strive to ensure all York Region residents have access to a safe, secure and welcoming place to call home 


	Overview of Housing York. 
	Overview of Housing York. 
	7th largest social housing  
	provider in Ontario Key partner for other social housing providers in York Region 



	2,441 
	2,441 
	units in 37 properties across all nine towns and cities in York Region 
	1,808 
	Total property value of $529M Annual budget of $29M 
	Bricks and mortar build houses. It’s the people and connections within families and communities that create a sense of home and belonging. That’s the environment we strive to build for the 4,000 people who call Housing York home. Healthy communities 
	With all our programs and services, our ultimate goal is to create strong communities where our residents can live meaningful, productive lives.  In 2015, we enjoyed continued success with many existing programs and introduced several new initiatives. Here are some of the highlights for 2015. 
	Supporting our senior tenants  
	Seniors make up the majority of our tenants. To help ensure that they remain engaged and involved in their community, we developed a program targeted for seniors at risk of social isolation. Working with such partners as Seeds for Change and York Region Public Health, we supported the delivery of various social programs at several of our properties. The feedback has been overwhelmingly positive. 
	Figure
	Figure

	4,000
	4,000
	4,000
	people call Housing York home 
	70 

	per cent are seniors or single adults 
	26 
	26 

	partners helped 
	Figure

	Working with our Community Partnerships team, we also facilitated sessions with our seniors tenants to 
	our tenants last 
	assist them in developing and implementing their .own events. Our seniors have hosted a range of year. activities including coffee chats, music programs, .laughter yoga and potlucks.. 
	“Thank you for all what you did for us! I live in Mapleglen Residences and I want to express my appreciation for a very nice lady, always smiling and caring – the property manager and her team. We are a happy family here and you should be proud and happy to do such work to take care of the seniors.” 
	Tenant, Mapleglen Residences 
	Figure
	Making transit easier Clean Air at Home event 
	Adding more transit options for seniors 
	Many of the seniors who live in our buildings rely on public transit. In response to tenants’ requests for more transit options in the City of Vaughan, we worked towards developing a “front door” bus service working with York Region Transit and the City. Small enhancements like this service go a long way in simplifying and improving the lives of our tenants. 
	Helping our tenants breathe a little easier 
	Helping our tenants breathe a little easier 
	In partnership with York Region Public Health, we created and delivered a “Clean Air at Home” campaign. Supported by free cleaning tool kits, promotional materials, prizes and a kick-off barbecue event, the program encourages tenants to complete five simple steps to improve the air quality in their homes. 

	Five simple steps to improve air quality in your home 
	1.
	1.
	1.
	 Turn on a fan or open a window when you shower 

	2.
	2.
	 Clean the floor with a damp mop or cloth 

	3.
	3.
	 Turn on a fan or open a window when you fry, sauté or grill food 

	4.
	4.
	 Use non-toxic cleaning products more often 

	5.
	5.
	 Make your home smoke-free 


	Helping our tenants access services and programs 
	Housing York connects tenants with community programs and services through our many partnerships. Parenting information, recreation subsidies, nutrition and senior safety campaigns are just a few examples of the broad range of services we, with the help of our partners below, provide tenants access to. 
	Canadian Hearing Society. 
	Canadian Hearing Society. 
	Canadian Mental Health .Association. Care First. Circle of Friends. Community Care Access Centre. Community & Home Assistance to .
	Seniors (CHATS). Community Health Assessment .
	Program - Emergency Medical .Services. Community Living. Delmanor Elgin Mills. Girls Inc. .Housing Help Centre. Housing Services Corporation. LOFT Community Services. 
	March of Dimes 
	Ontario Power Authority (Save on Energy) Home Assistance Program Seeds for Change The Salvation Army Victorian Order of Nurses York Region Family and Child 
	Services York Region Food Network York Region Healthy Aging Working 
	Group York Regional Police York Region Public Health York Region Paramedic Services York Support Services Network 360° kids 

	Figure
	Through continual care and sound investment, we work to ensure that our building infrastructure can meet the current and growing demand for high-quality, affordable housing.  Effective property management 
	Maximizing the life expectancy of our buildings 
	The average age of Housing York’s buildings is 28 years. Even with rising maintenance and repair costs, last year we completed more than 80 capital projects valued at over $3 million including: 
	•. 
	•. 
	•. 
	62 bathroom renovations at Brayfield Manors 

	•. 
	•. 
	75 kitchen renovations at Springbrook Gardens, Mulock Village and Rose Town 

	•. 
	•. 
	65 garage door replacements at Springbrook Gardens and Mulock Village 


	We also completed numerous other upgrades and enhancements. By keeping our assets in a state of good repair and increasing their safety and accessibility, we are maximizing the value and life span of all the buildings in our portfolio. 
	Completing close to 6,000 repair and maintenance requests 
	In 2015, we completed close to 6,000 requests ranging from tasks as simple as clearing plugged drains to more complex repairs. Not only vital to ensure the continued health and good standing of our buildings, these maintenance requests offer a great opportunity for our employees to engage with and educate our tenants on simple home maintenance techniques. 
	Sect
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure


	6,000
	6,000
	maintenance and repairs completed 
	Over 
	$3M 
	spent on capital projects 

	$60,000.
	$60,000.
	in energy savings 
	Figure
	Spotlight on select upgrades and enhancements to our buildings 
	•. 
	•. 
	•. 
	Automatic door openers in the common areas at Blue Willow terrace 

	•. 
	•. 
	Better lighting in the hallways at Keswick Gardens 

	•. 
	•. 
	New furniture in the lounge at Dunlop pines 

	•. 
	•. 
	New siding at Glenwood Mews 

	•. 
	•. 
	Sidewalk upgrades at Rose town 

	•. 
	•. 
	Furnace replacements at thornhill Green 

	•. 
	•. 
	$20,375 spent in elevator upgrades and maintenance across all Housing York buildings 

	•. 
	•. 
	$126,197 spent to upgrade smoke and CO2 detectors across all Housing York buildings 


	Conserving energy at our buildings 
	The focus of our work isn’t just centered on how our buildings look but also how well they run. In support of this, we introduced an energy conservation program at several sites identified with high electricity usage. Working with the  non-profit organization Housing Services Corporation, the program consisted of site-specific plans to support energy conservation. By tracking data before and after the introduction of the program, we will be able to demonstrate real energy savings to our tenants, motivating 
	Saving money through the Green Saver program 
	Through the Green Saver program, we replaced many appliances including dehumidifiers, refrigerators, freezers and air conditioners with more energy-efficient models, resulting in an annual savings of $60,000 in energy consumption. We also replaced close to 6,000 light bulbs with more energy-efficient ones, adding to our energy savings. 
	Our tenants speak out about maintenance staff 
	Our tenants speak out about maintenance staff 
	“Brilliant people work here. Thank you so much. They are always perfect.”  .“Exceptionally speedy response, as usual, very satisfied.” .“Best Super ever.” .“The request was received at 8:45 a.m. – the problem resolved by 9:30 a.m.” .“A wonderful person – did a fantastic job.” .
	Always looking towards the future, Housing York completed several large capital projects to increase the amount of affordable housing available in York Region. Planning for growth 16        HOUSING YORK INC. ANNUAL RepORt 
	Opening Belinda’s Place: York Region’s first home for homeless women 
	In December 2015, Belinda’s Place, in Newmarket, welcomed its first tenant. With 28 emergency beds and nine transitional units, Belinda’s Place offers 37 single, homeless women a safe and supportive environment where they can begin the process of building a brighter future.  Operated by The Salvation Army, Belinda’s Place also offers drop-in services, counselling and mental health services and is home to more than 30 agency partners that provide a range of services to support Belinda Place’s clients. 
	37 
	Figure

	homeless women helped at Belinda's Place 
	Figure
	Belinda's Place 
	Belinda's Place 


	“Because of transition housing at Belinda’s Place, I can breathe and focus on who I am and where I want to be. I’m working toward a profession in mental health as a peer support worker. This is the first time in a long time I’ve felt valued and have a sense of purpose.  This time the brick wall didn’t win. I can’t tell you how huge that is.” 
	Sheila, Belinda’s Place 
	Completing construction at the Richmond Hill Hub 
	Construction of the Richmond Hill Hub is ahead of schedule and will be available for occupancy in late January 2016. A nine-story building with 202 one and two-bedroom rental apartments, offered at a mix of subsidized and market rents, 444 people will call Richmond Hill Hub home. Featuring a community hub, roof-top patio and garden and commercial space, the Richmond Hill Hub has been designed to be self-sustaining without the need for government subsidies. 
	With easy access to highways and many schools and parks nearby, the Richmond Hill Hub is a welcome addition to the community. The building will also feature a drop-in centre and emergency transitional housing for young people, operated by the non-profit agency 360° kids. 
	Awarding the design/build contract for the Woodbridge Redevelopment project 
	In 2015, we awarded the contract for the design and construction of the Woodbridge Redevelopment project. We are excited to work with our development partner VanMar Constructors Inc. to redevelop the three current properties on Woodbridge Avenue in Vaughan. Construction is expected to begin in early 2017. Once complete, the Woodbridge Redevelopment project will increase affordable housing in the area from 46 to 150 units. 
	Housing York staff met frequently with tenants who will be re-housed during construction to keep them informed and updated on the project plans. We will continue to regularly connect with these tenants throughout the construction to minimize disruption and ensure a smooth transition.  
	Figure
	Richmond Hill Hub 
	Richmond Hill Hub 


	Laying the foundation for a new development in Unionville 
	The new development in Unionville will feature approximately 250 apartments, targeted to seniors. This project is in the early planning phase with ground breaking anticipated in 2017. The existing tenants located near the site, in Unionville Home Society’s Heritage Village, will remain in their homes throughout the construction of the new Housing York building and have been offered units in the new building. 
	Figure
	612 
	new units to be added in Richmond Hill, Unionville, 
	and Woodbridge. 
	Figure
	Proposed Woodbridge Redevelopment 
	Our tenants reflect a wide range of ages, cultures and backgrounds. While the diversity of their needs may be great, so too is the need for our tenant programs and services to help them thrive. User-friendly services 20        HOUSING YORK INC. ANNUAL RepORt 
	Engaging our tenants through a variety of programs 
	We know that the more engaged our tenants are within their building and community, the more positive the outcomes. In 2015, we continued to increase the number of programs and activities to enable our tenants to get to know their neighbours.  
	The range and creativity of the programs enjoyed by tenants was impressive including a MasterChef cooking competition, coffee clubs, potluck dinners, musical entertainment, barbecues, outdoor movie nights and a host of other activities and events. Collectively, these social activities enable our tenants to learn new skills and socialize with people with common interests. 
	Figure


	13-25 
	13-25 
	Many
	70 

	year olds 
	special activities meetings with  participated in Life 
	and programs  tenants 
	in My Community
	enjoyed by contest 
	tenants 
	Figure
	Music concert MasterChef winner 
	Tapping into young people’s creativity 
	We are very proud of the success of the Life in My Community photo contest for young people aged 13 to 
	25. The young people who participated submitted an impressive range of creative and compelling photos, offering their interpretation of life in their communities. Photos and participants were publicly recognized and awarded with prizes at an exhibit at the Richmond Hill Centre for the Performing Arts. 
	Figure
	Honouring the participants 
	Figure
	A few of the winning photos 
	“My neighbourhood is fun. It is my place to go when I want to have fun and to be around the people I love and care about.” 
	Youth, Mulock Village 
	Maximizing the safety and security of our buildings 
	In 2015, Housing York completed a comprehensive security review of all of our properties and developed a five-year upgrade plan to ensure that our buildings reflect the highest levels of safety and security. Moving forward and in partnership with York Regional Police, we will continue to support, upgrade and enhance property signage, standards and protocols.   
	Figure
	"What community means to me is seeing children play and learn. Seeing kids happy and playful means that our future as a community is brighter.” 
	Youth, Bray Circle   
	Listening to our tenants 
	The Tenant Reference Group, consisting of up to 15 members, is an invaluable resource for us to learn about the issues, concerns and interests of our tenants and to get their input and feedback on programs. Throughout 2015, we continued to meet with them regularly to share information and ensure a productive two-way flow of communication. We also held more than 70 tenant meetings throughout the year to share information and gather feedback from our tenants. 
	We strive to ensure that our organization is efficient, effective and responsive so we can deliver the programs and services that matter most to our tenants.      Well-run organization 24        HOUSING YORK INC. ANNUAL RepORt 
	Investing in technology 
	In 2015, we undertook a thorough review of our information technology systems to ensure we are optimizing our investment in technology. This work will continue throughout 2016 culminating in a major upgrade to our information technology systems, giving us the right and most current technical tools to support our business and operational objectives. 
	Ensuring the right staffing model and training programs to help our employees excel 
	The employees who work for Housing York are key to our success. We strive to ensure that we have the right staffing model and supports in place to help them succeed and excel at their jobs. In 2015, considerable effort was placed on staff training to ensure that our staff have the skills to effectively deliver the programs and services that make a positive difference in our tenants’ lives. 
	Staff received training in: Customer service and communication Personal safety and security Fire and life safety Leadership development opportunities 
	Profile of Angela Lippensky, Property Manager 
	Angela Lippensky is one of five property managers with Housing York. Angela oversees nine properties and 543 units including the recently opened Belinda’s Place.  Angela and her dedicated staff work together to ensure that the buildings under their responsibility run smoothly. 
	As Angela says, no day is typical for her. Between her regular building visits, ensuring that repair or maintenance requests are completed, directing staff and meeting with tenants, she fields numerous calls and emails. The favourite part of Angela’s job is interacting with people.  
	“It’s the human part that excites me most. I’ve been with Housing York since 2009 and have developed positive relationships with many of our tenants. Whether it’s a single mother with five kids or a seniors couple who are having some health issues, because we see our tenants on a regular basis, we are able to help them access the right support and services. This is the most satisfying part of my job: knowing that my team and I are making a difference in people’s lives.” 
	Figure
	Angela Lippensky, seated on the far left, with tenants and staff. 
	Angela Lippensky, seated on the far left, with tenants and staff. 


	Guiding our growth: planning for the next four years 
	In 2015, we focused our efforts on completing the balance of the goals in the Housing York 2012-2016 .Strategic Plan. As a result, we are well-positioned to complete all deliverables by the end of 2016. .
	In 2015, we also began planning our corporation’s goals and objectives for the next four years, 2017 to 2021. Through consultations with our Board of Directors and various other stakeholders, we are laying the early foundation for the development of the Housing York 2017-2021 Plan. 
	Figure
	Figure
	All our financial decisions are guided by one overriding principle – to ensure that we are in solid financial shape to meet the current and future needs of our residents.  Financially-secure business 28        HOUSING YORK INC. ANNUAL RepORt 
	Strengthening our financial reporting 
	In 2015, we implemented a new financial forecasting model. Undertaken by our operations and finance staff every quarter, these forecast reports provide a more detailed and current picture of the corporation’s revenue and expenditures. These financial forecasts also support and simplify the annual budgeting process and enhance decision-making.   
	Simplifying the rent subsidy model 
	In 2015, we developed and introduced a new rent subsidy model for the Richmond Hill Hub. By establishing standard rental rates for the entire year based on income range, this model simplifies the administration of rents. 
	The benefits are significant: serving more people on the waiting list for subsidized housing and reducing the need for government subsidies as rental revenues are more predictable. Based on the success of this program, we are planning to roll out this subsidy model to new buildings throughout the region. 
	“The new financial forecasting model gives the operations team more influence on how key performance indicators are monitored, directly impacting how we deliver strategic objectives. Direct involvement in the quarterly forecasting process also means that we are well-informed and able to make timely decisions, ensuring effective management of resources while maintaining a commitment to healthy communities.”   
	Randall Profitt Manager, Operations Housing York South Portfolio 
	2014 to 2018 Retained Earnings. 
	2014 to 2018 Retained Earnings. 
	Figure

	2015 Financial highlights 
	2015 Financial highlights 
	Through prudent financial management focused on maintaining solid rental revenue performance and expenditure optimization, we achieved a $534,601 surplus in 2015 fostering the company’s strong financial health. 
	Balance Sheet 
	Assets 2015 
	Assets 2015 
	Current Assets 7,554,461 6,592,806 
	Restricted Cash and Investments 8,025,880 7,206,178 property Holdings  144,017,726 150,232,624 $159,598,067 $164,031,608 
	Liabilities and Equity 
	Current Liabilities 11,328,401 33,959,246. Mortgages and Loans payable 68,231,455 50,355,495. 
	Equity 
	Reserve Fund for Capital equipment Replacement Other Reserves Retained earnings 
	Reserve Fund for Capital equipment Replacement Other Reserves Retained earnings 
	Reserve Fund for Capital equipment Replacement Other Reserves Retained earnings 
	4,762,354 72,092,420 3,183,437 80,038,211 
	4,952,608 71,711,423 3,052,836 79,716,867 

	TR
	$159,598,067
	 $164,031,608 


	Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Retained Earnings 
	Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Retained Earnings 
	Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Retained Earnings 

	TR
	2015 Actual 
	2014 Actual 

	Revenue 
	Revenue 


	Rents and Other Operating Income
	Rents and Other Operating Income
	Rents and Other Operating Income
	 21,013,112 
	20,173,587 

	Operating Subsidy
	Operating Subsidy
	 8,557,220 
	8,633,987 

	TR
	$29,570,332
	 $28,807,574 


	Expenditures Mortgage payments 9,140,458 9,437,377 
	Administration and Maintenance
	Administration and Maintenance
	Administration and Maintenance
	 9,969,447 
	9,466,070 

	property taxes
	property taxes
	 3,004,072 
	2,820,420 

	Utilities
	Utilities
	 3,112,389 
	2,864,464 

	Capital
	Capital
	 1,126,851 
	1,304,261 

	Insurance
	Insurance
	 466,149 
	443,408 

	Shelter
	Shelter
	 128,640 
	105,120 

	Bad Debts
	Bad Debts
	 47,773 
	52,950 

	TR
	$26,995,779 
	$26,494,070 


	excess of Revenue over expenditures Before the Undernoted 2,574,553 2,313,504 
	Contribution to Capital Reserve
	Contribution to Capital Reserve
	Contribution to Capital Reserve
	 1,991,252 
	1,782,441 

	Contribution to Operations Reserve
	Contribution to Operations Reserve
	 23,700 
	23,700 

	excess of Revenue over expenditures
	excess of Revenue over expenditures
	 559,601 
	507,363 

	Retained earnings, beginning of year
	Retained earnings, beginning of year
	 3,052,836 
	2,595,622 

	Internal Allocations:
	Internal Allocations:

	     Contribution from Insurance Reserve 
	     Contribution from Insurance Reserve 
	(25,000) 
	(50,149) 

	emergency power plan - additional contribution 
	emergency power plan - additional contribution 
	(404,000) 

	Retained earnings, end of year
	Retained earnings, end of year
	 $3,183,437 
	$3,052,836 


	2015 Revenue Mix 
	Market Rent 
	11,434 
	Figure

	RGI Rent 
	9,579 
	Subsidy 
	8,557 
	total Revenue 
	29,570 
	8,557 29% 9,579 32% 
	Market Rent RGI Rent Subsidy 
	11,434 39% 


	Total Operating Revenue 29,570 
	Total Operating Revenue 29,570 
	2015 Operating Expenses $000s 
	Expenditures: 2015 
	Mortgage payments 9,140 Maintenance, Administration and Bad Debts 10,612 property taxes 3,004 Utilities 3,112 Contribution to Housing York Reserves 2,014 public Housing Capital 1,126 
	total Operating expenses 29,010 
	1,127.2,0154%. 
	Mortgage Payments 
	Maintenance, Administration and Bad Debts 
	Property Taxes 
	Utilities 
	Contribution to Housing York Reserves 
	Public Housing Capital 
	Total Operating Expenses 29,010 
	9,140 31% 10,612 37% 3,00410% 3,11211% 7% 


	Looking ahead to 2016 
	Looking ahead to 2016 
	A year of completion .as we realize all the goals in the  .Housing York 2012-2016 Strategic Plan.. 
	A year of transition  .as we build the foundations for the  .Housing York 2017-2021 Plan.. 
	We are optimistic about the future and confident in our .ability to meet the housing needs of  .York Region’s residents.. 
	Sources: 
	1 Toronto Real Estate Board, Market Watch, 2015 2 Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation, Rental Market Report, Fall 
	34        HOUSING YORK INC. ANNUAL RepORt 
	Figure
	1091 Gorham Street, Unit 104, Newmarket, Ontario L3Y 8X7. 
	Access York .phone: 1-877-464-9675. ttY: 1-866-512-6228 or 905-895-4293  .(for deaf and harf of hearing). 
	Accessible formats or communication .supports are available upon request. 
	Figure
	Figure
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	The Regional Municipality of York, Ontario, Canada for the year ended December 31, 2015 
	Figure
	Working with internal and external partners, Housing York Inc.’s goal is to support healthy communities through a broad range of housing choices and supports that meet the diverse needs of York Region residents. 
	Working with internal and external partners, Housing York Inc.’s goal is to support healthy communities through a broad range of housing choices and supports that meet the diverse needs of York Region residents. 
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	Council, Board and leadership 
	Council, Board and leadership 
	With the support and contributions of York Regional Council, a Board of Directors and Housing York leadership and staff, we work to build strong, healthy and affordable housing communities. 
	York Regional Council 
	York Regional Council 
	York Regional Council owns Housing York and defines its governance framework. 
	Housing York Board of Directors 
	York Regional Council appoints 10 Board members. Housing York’s Board of Directors sets operational policies and oversees management of the corporation. 
	Figure

	Housing York Leadership 
	Housing York Leadership 
	Housing York is part of The Regional Municipality of York’s Community and Health Services department. Through a Management Agreement, Housing York provides executive and support staff to manage the day-to-day operations of the corporation. 
	Figure

	A Message from the Housing York Chief Executive Officer and Chair 
	A Message from the Housing York Chief Executive Officer and Chair 
	Housing is fundamental for developing strong communities. In a growing and diverse Region, housing continues to be less and less affordable for our low-to-moderate income residents.  Housing York, the Regional Municipality of York’s non-profit housing corporation, continues to provide much needed affordable housing to more than 4,000 York Region residents. Year after year, Housing York continues to grow with new units and new programs and services that better support our tenants.  
	In 2015, Housing York made significant progress in advancing the goals outlined in the Housing York Inc. 2012 – 2016 Strategic Plan.  
	Some highlights include: 
	•. 
	•. 
	•. 
	Opening Belinda’s Place – York Region’s first emergency housing facility for homeless women is owned by Housing York and operated by the Salvation Army;  Belinda’s Place has 28 emergency beds and nine transitional units providing much needs services to over 37 single women 

	•. 
	•. 
	Investing in our buildings – Last year, Housing York Inc., invested more than $3.4 million in our repairs and capital improvements such as new kitchens, furnace replacements and accessibility upgrades that ensure our buildings remain in top condition and provide a comfortable, safe home for our tenants 

	•. 
	•. 
	New programs and services – In 2015, we introduced a number of programs and services to help involve youth and seniors in the Housing York communities; various workshops, activities and events 


	As we move into the final year of the Housing York Inc.’s 2012-2016 Strategic Plan, we will continue to focus on building healthy communities, managing our properties and finances proactively and looking for more opportunities to engage our tenants. 
	Wayne Emmerson Jack Heath .CEO, Housing York Inc. Chair, Housing York Inc. .


	Executive summary 
	Executive summary 
	The background: Our Region is growing 
	The background: Our Region is growing 
	•. 
	•. 
	•. 
	The Regional Municipality of York is the third largest municipality in Ontario and Canada’s fastest-growing large municipality 

	•. 
	•. 
	The current population of more than 1.1 million is expected to reach 1.8 million by 2041 

	•. 
	•. 
	The senior population is expected to grow from 11 per cent to 21 per cent by 2021 

	•. 
	•. 
	In Canada, York Region has the third largest proportion of immigrants, after Peel and Toronto 


	The need: Home ownership and home .affordability is becoming more challenging. 
	•. 
	•. 
	•. 
	The average re-sale price for a single detached home in 2015 was over $943,0001 

	•. 
	•. 
	Only 12 per cent of York Region’s housing is rental, compared to 30 per cent nationally 

	•. 
	•. 
	The average monthly market rent of a two-bedroom apartment is $1,2622 

	•. 
	•. 
	Over 12,000 households are waiting for social housing in York Region 
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	The services: Housing York is helping to fill the gap between need for accommodation and affordability 
	•. 
	•. 
	•. 
	Housing York owns and manages 36 properties and 2,441 units spread across York Region’s nine towns and cities 

	•. 
	•. 
	We are adding 612 new units over the next five years 


	The goal: A place to call home at every age and stage 
	•. We strive to ensure all York Region residents have access to a safe, secure and welcoming place to call home 


	Overview of Housing York. 
	Overview of Housing York. 
	7th largest social housing  
	provider in Ontario Key partner for other social housing providers in York Region 



	2,441 
	2,441 
	units in 37 properties across all nine towns and cities in York Region 
	1,808 
	Total property value of $529M Annual budget of $29M 
	Bricks and mortar build houses. It’s the people and connections within families and communities that create a sense of home and belonging. That’s the environment we strive to build for the 4,000 people who call Housing York home. Healthy communities 
	With all our programs and services, our ultimate goal is to create strong communities where our residents can live meaningful, productive lives.  In 2015, we enjoyed continued success with many existing programs and introduced several new initiatives. Here are some of the highlights for 2015. 
	Supporting our senior tenants  
	Seniors make up the majority of our tenants. To help ensure that they remain engaged and involved in their community, we developed a program targeted for seniors at risk of social isolation. Working with such partners as Seeds for Change and York Region Public Health, we supported the delivery of various social programs at several of our properties. The feedback has been overwhelmingly positive. 
	Figure
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	4,000
	4,000
	4,000
	people call Housing York home 
	70 

	per cent are seniors or single adults 
	26 
	26 

	partners helped 
	Figure

	Working with our Community Partnerships team, we also facilitated sessions with our seniors tenants to 
	our tenants last 
	assist them in developing and implementing their .own events. Our seniors have hosted a range of year. activities including coffee chats, music programs, .laughter yoga and potlucks.. 
	“Thank you for all what you did for us! I live in Mapleglen Residences and I want to express my appreciation for a very nice lady, always smiling and caring – the property manager and her team. We are a happy family here and you should be proud and happy to do such work to take care of the seniors.” 
	Tenant, Mapleglen Residences 
	Figure
	Making transit easier Clean Air at Home event 
	Adding more transit options for seniors 
	Many of the seniors who live in our buildings rely on public transit. In response to tenants’ requests for more transit options in the City of Vaughan, we worked towards developing a “front door” bus service working with York Region Transit and the City. Small enhancements like this service go a long way in simplifying and improving the lives of our tenants. 
	Helping our tenants breathe a little easier 
	Helping our tenants breathe a little easier 
	In partnership with York Region Public Health, we created and delivered a “Clean Air at Home” campaign. Supported by free cleaning tool kits, promotional materials, prizes and a kick-off barbecue event, the program encourages tenants to complete five simple steps to improve the air quality in their homes. 

	Five simple steps to improve air quality in your home 
	1.
	1.
	1.
	 Turn on a fan or open a window when you shower 

	2.
	2.
	 Clean the floor with a damp mop or cloth 

	3.
	3.
	 Turn on a fan or open a window when you fry, sauté or grill food 

	4.
	4.
	 Use non-toxic cleaning products more often 

	5.
	5.
	 Make your home smoke-free 


	Helping our tenants access services and programs 
	Housing York connects tenants with community programs and services through our many partnerships. Parenting information, recreation subsidies, nutrition and senior safety campaigns are just a few examples of the broad range of services we, with the help of our partners below, provide tenants access to. 
	Canadian Hearing Society. 
	Canadian Hearing Society. 
	Canadian Mental Health .Association. Care First. Circle of Friends. Community Care Access Centre. Community & Home Assistance to .
	Seniors (CHATS). Community Health Assessment .
	Program - Emergency Medical .Services. Community Living. Delmanor Elgin Mills. Girls Inc. .Housing Help Centre. Housing Services Corporation. LOFT Community Services. 
	March of Dimes 
	Ontario Power Authority (Save on Energy) Home Assistance Program Seeds for Change The Salvation Army Victorian Order of Nurses York Region Family and Child 
	Services York Region Food Network York Region Healthy Aging Working 
	Group York Regional Police York Region Public Health York Region Paramedic Services York Support Services Network 360° kids 

	Figure
	Through continual care and sound investment, we work to ensure that our building infrastructure can meet the current and growing demand for high-quality, affordable housing.  Effective property management 
	Maximizing the life expectancy of our buildings 
	The average age of Housing York’s buildings is 28 years. Even with rising maintenance and repair costs, last year we completed more than 80 capital projects valued at over $3 million including: 
	•. 
	•. 
	•. 
	62 bathroom renovations at Brayfield Manors 

	•. 
	•. 
	75 kitchen renovations at Springbrook Gardens, Mulock Village and Rose Town 

	•. 
	•. 
	65 garage door replacements at Springbrook Gardens and Mulock Village 


	We also completed numerous other upgrades and enhancements. By keeping our assets in a state of good repair and increasing their safety and accessibility, we are maximizing the value and life span of all the buildings in our portfolio. 
	Completing close to 6,000 repair and maintenance requests 
	In 2015, we completed close to 6,000 requests ranging from tasks as simple as clearing plugged drains to more complex repairs. Not only vital to ensure the continued health and good standing of our buildings, these maintenance requests offer a great opportunity for our employees to engage with and educate our tenants on simple home maintenance techniques. 
	Sect
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	Figure
	Figure


	6,000
	6,000
	maintenance and repairs completed 
	Over 
	$3M 
	spent on capital projects 

	$60,000.
	$60,000.
	in energy savings 
	Figure
	Spotlight on select upgrades and enhancements to our buildings 
	•. 
	•. 
	•. 
	Automatic door openers in the common areas at Blue Willow terrace 

	•. 
	•. 
	Better lighting in the hallways at Keswick Gardens 

	•. 
	•. 
	New furniture in the lounge at Dunlop pines 

	•. 
	•. 
	New siding at Glenwood Mews 

	•. 
	•. 
	Sidewalk upgrades at Rose town 

	•. 
	•. 
	Furnace replacements at thornhill Green 

	•. 
	•. 
	$20,375 spent in elevator upgrades and maintenance across all Housing York buildings 

	•. 
	•. 
	$126,197 spent to upgrade smoke and CO2 detectors across all Housing York buildings 


	Conserving energy at our buildings 
	The focus of our work isn’t just centered on how our buildings look but also how well they run. In support of this, we introduced an energy conservation program at several sites identified with high electricity usage. Working with the  non-profit organization Housing Services Corporation, the program consisted of site-specific plans to support energy conservation. By tracking data before and after the introduction of the program, we will be able to demonstrate real energy savings to our tenants, motivating 
	Saving money through the Green Saver program 
	Through the Green Saver program, we replaced many appliances including dehumidifiers, refrigerators, freezers and air conditioners with more energy-efficient models, resulting in an annual savings of $60,000 in energy consumption. We also replaced close to 6,000 light bulbs with more energy-efficient ones, adding to our energy savings. 
	Our tenants speak out about maintenance staff 
	Our tenants speak out about maintenance staff 
	“Brilliant people work here. Thank you so much. They are always perfect.”  .“Exceptionally speedy response, as usual, very satisfied.” .“Best Super ever.” .“The request was received at 8:45 a.m. – the problem resolved by 9:30 a.m.” .“A wonderful person – did a fantastic job.” .
	Always looking towards the future, Housing York completed several large capital projects to increase the amount of affordable housing available in York Region. Planning for growth 16        HOUSING YORK INC. ANNUAL RepORt 
	Opening Belinda’s Place: York Region’s first home for homeless women 
	In December 2015, Belinda’s Place, in Newmarket, welcomed its first tenant. With 28 emergency beds and nine transitional units, Belinda’s Place offers 37 single, homeless women a safe and supportive environment where they can begin the process of building a brighter future.  Operated by The Salvation Army, Belinda’s Place also offers drop-in services, counselling and mental health services and is home to more than 30 agency partners that provide a range of services to support Belinda Place’s clients. 
	37 
	Figure

	homeless women helped at Belinda's Place 
	Figure
	Belinda's Place 
	Belinda's Place 


	“Because of transition housing at Belinda’s Place, I can breathe and focus on who I am and where I want to be. I’m working toward a profession in mental health as a peer support worker. This is the first time in a long time I’ve felt valued and have a sense of purpose.  This time the brick wall didn’t win. I can’t tell you how huge that is.” 
	Sheila, Belinda’s Place 
	Completing construction at the Richmond Hill Hub 
	Construction of the Richmond Hill Hub is ahead of schedule and will be available for occupancy in late January 2016. A nine-story building with 202 one and two-bedroom rental apartments, offered at a mix of subsidized and market rents, 444 people will call Richmond Hill Hub home. Featuring a community hub, roof-top patio and garden and commercial space, the Richmond Hill Hub has been designed to be self-sustaining without the need for government subsidies. 
	With easy access to highways and many schools and parks nearby, the Richmond Hill Hub is a welcome addition to the community. The building will also feature a drop-in centre and emergency transitional housing for young people, operated by the non-profit agency 360° kids. 
	Awarding the design/build contract for the Woodbridge Redevelopment project 
	In 2015, we awarded the contract for the design and construction of the Woodbridge Redevelopment project. We are excited to work with our development partner VanMar Constructors Inc. to redevelop the three current properties on Woodbridge Avenue in Vaughan. Construction is expected to begin in early 2017. Once complete, the Woodbridge Redevelopment project will increase affordable housing in the area from 46 to 150 units. 
	Housing York staff met frequently with tenants who will be re-housed during construction to keep them informed and updated on the project plans. We will continue to regularly connect with these tenants throughout the construction to minimize disruption and ensure a smooth transition.  
	Figure
	Richmond Hill Hub 
	Richmond Hill Hub 


	Laying the foundation for a new development in Unionville 
	The new development in Unionville will feature approximately 250 apartments, targeted to seniors. This project is in the early planning phase with ground breaking anticipated in 2017. The existing tenants located near the site, in Unionville Home Society’s Heritage Village, will remain in their homes throughout the construction of the new Housing York building and have been offered units in the new building. 
	Figure
	612 
	new units to be added in Richmond Hill, Unionville, 
	and Woodbridge. 
	Figure
	Proposed Woodbridge Redevelopment 
	Our tenants reflect a wide range of ages, cultures and backgrounds. While the diversity of their needs may be great, so too is the need for our tenant programs and services to help them thrive. User-friendly services 20        HOUSING YORK INC. ANNUAL RepORt 
	Engaging our tenants through a variety of programs 
	We know that the more engaged our tenants are within their building and community, the more positive the outcomes. In 2015, we continued to increase the number of programs and activities to enable our tenants to get to know their neighbours.  
	The range and creativity of the programs enjoyed by tenants was impressive including a MasterChef cooking competition, coffee clubs, potluck dinners, musical entertainment, barbecues, outdoor movie nights and a host of other activities and events. Collectively, these social activities enable our tenants to learn new skills and socialize with people with common interests. 
	Figure


	13-25 
	13-25 
	Many
	70 

	year olds 
	special activities meetings with  participated in Life 
	and programs  tenants 
	in My Community
	enjoyed by contest 
	tenants 
	Figure
	Music concert MasterChef winner 
	Tapping into young people’s creativity 
	We are very proud of the success of the Life in My Community photo contest for young people aged 13 to 
	25. The young people who participated submitted an impressive range of creative and compelling photos, offering their interpretation of life in their communities. Photos and participants were publicly recognized and awarded with prizes at an exhibit at the Richmond Hill Centre for the Performing Arts. 
	Figure
	Honouring the participants 
	Figure
	A few of the winning photos 
	“My neighbourhood is fun. It is my place to go when I want to have fun and to be around the people I love and care about.” 
	Youth, Mulock Village 
	Maximizing the safety and security of our buildings 
	In 2015, Housing York completed a comprehensive security review of all of our properties and developed a five-year upgrade plan to ensure that our buildings reflect the highest levels of safety and security. Moving forward and in partnership with York Regional Police, we will continue to support, upgrade and enhance property signage, standards and protocols.   
	Figure
	"What community means to me is seeing children play and learn. Seeing kids happy and playful means that our future as a community is brighter.” 
	Youth, Bray Circle   
	Listening to our tenants 
	The Tenant Reference Group, consisting of up to 15 members, is an invaluable resource for us to learn about the issues, concerns and interests of our tenants and to get their input and feedback on programs. Throughout 2015, we continued to meet with them regularly to share information and ensure a productive two-way flow of communication. We also held more than 70 tenant meetings throughout the year to share information and gather feedback from our tenants. 
	We strive to ensure that our organization is efficient, effective and responsive so we can deliver the programs and services that matter most to our tenants.      Well-run organization 24        HOUSING YORK INC. ANNUAL RepORt 
	Investing in technology 
	In 2015, we undertook a thorough review of our information technology systems to ensure we are optimizing our investment in technology. This work will continue throughout 2016 culminating in a major upgrade to our information technology systems, giving us the right and most current technical tools to support our business and operational objectives. 
	Ensuring the right staffing model and training programs to help our employees excel 
	The employees who work for Housing York are key to our success. We strive to ensure that we have the right staffing model and supports in place to help them succeed and excel at their jobs. In 2015, considerable effort was placed on staff training to ensure that our staff have the skills to effectively deliver the programs and services that make a positive difference in our tenants’ lives. 
	Staff received training in: Customer service and communication Personal safety and security Fire and life safety Leadership development opportunities 
	Profile of Angela Lippensky, Property Manager 
	Angela Lippensky is one of five property managers with Housing York. Angela oversees nine properties and 543 units including the recently opened Belinda’s Place.  Angela and her dedicated staff work together to ensure that the buildings under their responsibility run smoothly. 
	As Angela says, no day is typical for her. Between her regular building visits, ensuring that repair or maintenance requests are completed, directing staff and meeting with tenants, she fields numerous calls and emails. The favourite part of Angela’s job is interacting with people.  
	“It’s the human part that excites me most. I’ve been with Housing York since 2009 and have developed positive relationships with many of our tenants. Whether it’s a single mother with five kids or a seniors couple who are having some health issues, because we see our tenants on a regular basis, we are able to help them access the right support and services. This is the most satisfying part of my job: knowing that my team and I are making a difference in people’s lives.” 
	Figure
	Angela Lippensky, seated on the far left, with tenants and staff. 
	Angela Lippensky, seated on the far left, with tenants and staff. 


	Guiding our growth: planning for the next four years 
	In 2015, we focused our efforts on completing the balance of the goals in the Housing York 2012-2016 .Strategic Plan. As a result, we are well-positioned to complete all deliverables by the end of 2016. .
	In 2015, we also began planning our corporation’s goals and objectives for the next four years, 2017 to 2021. Through consultations with our Board of Directors and various other stakeholders, we are laying the early foundation for the development of the Housing York 2017-2021 Plan. 
	Figure
	Figure
	All our financial decisions are guided by one overriding principle – to ensure that we are in solid financial shape to meet the current and future needs of our residents.  Financially-secure business 28        HOUSING YORK INC. ANNUAL RepORt 
	Strengthening our financial reporting 
	In 2015, we implemented a new financial forecasting model. Undertaken by our operations and finance staff every quarter, these forecast reports provide a more detailed and current picture of the corporation’s revenue and expenditures. These financial forecasts also support and simplify the annual budgeting process and enhance decision-making.   
	Simplifying the rent subsidy model 
	In 2015, we developed and introduced a new rent subsidy model for the Richmond Hill Hub. By establishing standard rental rates for the entire year based on income range, this model simplifies the administration of rents. 
	The benefits are significant: serving more people on the waiting list for subsidized housing and reducing the need for government subsidies as rental revenues are more predictable. Based on the success of this program, we are planning to roll out this subsidy model to new buildings throughout the region. 
	“The new financial forecasting model gives the operations team more influence on how key performance indicators are monitored, directly impacting how we deliver strategic objectives. Direct involvement in the quarterly forecasting process also means that we are well-informed and able to make timely decisions, ensuring effective management of resources while maintaining a commitment to healthy communities.”   
	Randall Profitt Manager, Operations Housing York South Portfolio 
	2014 to 2018 Retained Earnings. 
	2014 to 2018 Retained Earnings. 
	Figure

	2015 Financial highlights 
	2015 Financial highlights 
	Through prudent financial management focused on maintaining solid rental revenue performance and expenditure optimization, we achieved a $534,601 surplus in 2015 fostering the company’s strong financial health. 
	Balance Sheet 
	Assets 2015 
	Assets 2015 
	Current Assets 7,554,461 6,592,806 
	Restricted Cash and Investments 8,025,880 7,206,178 property Holdings  144,017,726 150,232,624 $159,598,067 $164,031,608 
	Liabilities and Equity 
	Current Liabilities 11,328,401 33,959,246. Mortgages and Loans payable 68,231,455 50,355,495. 
	Equity 
	Reserve Fund for Capital equipment Replacement Other Reserves Retained earnings 
	Reserve Fund for Capital equipment Replacement Other Reserves Retained earnings 
	Reserve Fund for Capital equipment Replacement Other Reserves Retained earnings 
	4,762,354 72,092,420 3,183,437 80,038,211 
	4,952,608 71,711,423 3,052,836 79,716,867 

	TR
	$159,598,067
	 $164,031,608 


	Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Retained Earnings 
	Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Retained Earnings 
	Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Retained Earnings 

	TR
	2015 Actual 
	2014 Actual 

	Revenue 
	Revenue 


	Rents and Other Operating Income
	Rents and Other Operating Income
	Rents and Other Operating Income
	 21,013,112 
	20,173,587 

	Operating Subsidy
	Operating Subsidy
	 8,557,220 
	8,633,987 

	TR
	$29,570,332
	 $28,807,574 


	Expenditures Mortgage payments 9,140,458 9,437,377 
	Administration and Maintenance
	Administration and Maintenance
	Administration and Maintenance
	 9,969,447 
	9,466,070 

	property taxes
	property taxes
	 3,004,072 
	2,820,420 

	Utilities
	Utilities
	 3,112,389 
	2,864,464 

	Capital
	Capital
	 1,126,851 
	1,304,261 

	Insurance
	Insurance
	 466,149 
	443,408 

	Shelter
	Shelter
	 128,640 
	105,120 

	Bad Debts
	Bad Debts
	 47,773 
	52,950 

	TR
	$26,995,779 
	$26,494,070 


	excess of Revenue over expenditures Before the Undernoted 2,574,553 2,313,504 
	Contribution to Capital Reserve
	Contribution to Capital Reserve
	Contribution to Capital Reserve
	 1,991,252 
	1,782,441 

	Contribution to Operations Reserve
	Contribution to Operations Reserve
	 23,700 
	23,700 

	excess of Revenue over expenditures
	excess of Revenue over expenditures
	 559,601 
	507,363 

	Retained earnings, beginning of year
	Retained earnings, beginning of year
	 3,052,836 
	2,595,622 

	Internal Allocations:
	Internal Allocations:

	     Contribution from Insurance Reserve 
	     Contribution from Insurance Reserve 
	(25,000) 
	(50,149) 

	emergency power plan - additional contribution 
	emergency power plan - additional contribution 
	(404,000) 

	Retained earnings, end of year
	Retained earnings, end of year
	 $3,183,437 
	$3,052,836 


	2015 Revenue Mix 
	Market Rent 
	11,434 
	Figure

	RGI Rent 
	9,579 
	Subsidy 
	8,557 
	total Revenue 
	29,570 
	8,557 29% 9,579 32% 
	Market Rent RGI Rent Subsidy 
	11,434 39% 


	Total Operating Revenue 29,570 
	Total Operating Revenue 29,570 
	2015 Operating Expenses $000s 
	Expenditures: 2015 
	Mortgage payments 9,140 Maintenance, Administration and Bad Debts 10,612 property taxes 3,004 Utilities 3,112 Contribution to Housing York Reserves 2,014 public Housing Capital 1,126 
	total Operating expenses 29,010 
	1,127.2,0154%. 
	Mortgage Payments 
	Maintenance, Administration and Bad Debts 
	Property Taxes 
	Utilities 
	Contribution to Housing York Reserves 
	Public Housing Capital 
	Total Operating Expenses 29,010 
	9,140 31% 10,612 37% 3,00410% 3,11211% 7% 


	Looking ahead to 2016 
	Looking ahead to 2016 
	A year of completion .as we realize all the goals in the  .Housing York 2012-2016 Strategic Plan.. 
	A year of transition  .as we build the foundations for the  .Housing York 2017-2021 Plan.. 
	We are optimistic about the future and confident in our .ability to meet the housing needs of  .York Region’s residents.. 
	Sources: 
	1 Toronto Real Estate Board, Market Watch, 2015 2 Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation, Rental Market Report, Fall 
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	1091 Gorham Street, Unit 104, Newmarket, Ontario L3Y 8X7. 
	Access York .phone: 1-877-464-9675. ttY: 1-866-512-6228 or 905-895-4293  .(for deaf and harf of hearing). 
	Accessible formats or communication .supports are available upon request. 
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